
HUMBOLDT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT #22 • MR. JOHN POTHAST, SUPERINTENDENT 

  6411 N. ROBERT ROAD, PRESCOTT VALLEY, AZ 86314 • PHONE  928.759.4000 • FAX  928.759.4020 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING 

Tuesday, January 11, 2022 

HUSD Transportation Training Facility 
6411 N Robert Road (bldg. 500) 

Prescott Valley, AZ  

Regular Session @ 6:30 

OFFICIAL COPY 

Mr. John Pothast, Superintendent 

Richard Adler, President 
Paul Ruwald, Vice President 

Suzie Roth, Member  
Ryan Gray, Member 

Corey Christians, Member 



Regular Session January 11, 2022  Page 1 of 3 

 
HUMBOLDT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT #22 

“To provide a comprehensive, world-class education for all students” 

NOTICE OF COMBINED PUBLIC MEETING AND EXECUTIVE SESSION OF THE 

GOVERNING BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Notice is hereby given that the Governing Board of the Humboldt Unified School District #22 will convene during a 
meeting open to the public on January 11, 2022, at the Transportation Training Facility Bldg 500, located at 6411 
N. Robert Road, Prescott Valley, Arizona.  This meeting will also be live-streamed, as we begin our transition 
back to the traditional in-person only meetings.   

** ATTENDEES ARE ENCOURAGED TO WEAR A FACEMASK** 

• If authorized by a majority vote of the members of the Governing Board, any matter on the Open Meeting
Agenda may be discussed in executive session for the purpose of obtaining legal advice thereon, pursuant to
A.R.S. 38-431.03 (A)(3).  The Board may also vote to convene in executive session to review and discuss issues
marked with an asterisk (*). These sessions are not open to the public; however, Board decisions will be made in
open public assembly.

• Members of the HUSD Governing Board who are not able to attend in person may participate via an electronic
medium.

• The Agenda may be revised up to twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting.  Revisions will be posted at the
HUSD District Office located at 6411 N. Robert Road, Prescott Valley, Arizona, and on the district website
www.humboldtunified.com and go to the Governing Board Tab.

• Persons with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign language interpreter, by
contacting Samantha Bartmus at (928)759-5007 or samantha.bartmus@humboldtunified.com.  Requests should
be made as early as possible to arrange the accommodation.

• Members of the public wishing to address the Board are requested to complete a Public Participation Form
provided at the entrance of the meeting area.

• Discussion by the Board is limited to items posted on the agenda.

** ATTENDEES ARE ENCOURAGED TO WEAR A FACEMASK** 

AGENDA 

6:30 PM REGULAR SESSION 

1. WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/FLAG CEREMONY

3. ROLL CALL

4. AGENDA REVIEW/ACCEPT

5. CURRENT EVENTS
A.   Board
B.   Superintendent

6. BOARD ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 15-321
Pages 1-4 A.   Election of Governing Board President

B.   Election of Governing Board Vice-President
C.   Establish regular board meeting dates, times, and location(s)
D.   Establish official location(s) for posting of board notices/agendas
E.   Possible action regarding choice of options for student expulsion hearings

POSTED 

1/07/21 

5:00 p.m. 

http://www.humboldtunified.com/
mailto:samantha.bartmus@humboldtunified.com


Regular Session January 11, 2022                                                              Page 2 of 3 
 

 7.      CELEBRATING SUCCESSES  
Pages 5-8       A.  HUSD VIPs –  

1. Volunteer – Austin Mullins 
2. Classified – Jamie Huber 
3. Certified – Amanda Zeman 
  

 8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
Participation is reserved for members of the public who have submitted a completed Public 
Participation Form. Total length of time shall not exceed 30 minutes.  Individual times shall not 
exceed 5 minutes (Policy BEDH).  When addressing the Board, speakers are to state their name and 
subject into the microphone so that their statements may be properly recorded.   
 
Members of the Board may not discuss items that are not specifically on the agenda.  Therefore, 
pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.01(H), action taken as a result of public comment will be limited to 
directing staff to study the matter, responding to any criticism or scheduling the matter for further 
consideration and decision at a later time. 

 
 9. CONSENT ITEMS 

This section includes approval of items such as minutes, routine warrants, purchase orders, travel 
claims, employee leave requests, employee transfer requests and resignations, gifts to the District, 
and student and/or staff travel.  Documentation concerning the matters on the Consent Agenda may 
be reviewed at the District office.  Upon the request of a Board member, a topic on the Consent 
Agenda may be removed from this segment of the meeting and discussed as a Regular Agenda 
item. 
 

Pages 9-12 A.   Governing Board Meeting Minutes of December 07, 2021 (audio recording is posted on the 
……District’s.website at www.humboldtunified.com) 

 
Pages 13-18 B. Personnel Recommendations 
 
Pages 19-176 C. Financial/Business 
   1.  Approval of Accounts Payable voucher(s) in the amount of $ 1,691,344.97 
   2.  Approval of Payroll voucher(s) in the amount of $ 5,989,244.07 
 
Pages 177-184 D. Monthly Budget Report 
 
Pages 185-188 E. Monthly Student Activities Report 
 
Pages 189-192 F.   Request for ratification of expenditures for Contracts, Work Agreements and supplementals for 

……July 2021. 
 
Pages 193-204 G. Request for approval to renew the IGA between HUSD and YCESA  
   
Pages 205-208 H. Request for approval of HUSD Classified Job Placement Schedule for 2021-22. 
 
Pages 209-212  I. Request for approval of the ESSER funded IS Specialist position for IT. 
 
Pages 213-216 J. Request for approval of the Job Description of the Behavior Specialist contingent on grant 

…...funding. 
 
Pages 217-228 K. Request to dispose of inoperable District Equipment. 
 
Pages 229-230 L. Gifts and Donations 
  
 10. DISCUSSION ITEMS (no action will be taken) 
Pages 231-232 A. School update from Granville Elementary School Principal Patricia Scarpa to include: 

• A walk-About in Video Format 

• Opportunities 



Regular Session January 11, 2022                                                              Page 3 of 3 
 

• Celebrations 
 

Pages 233-238 B. Bradshaw Mountain High School CTE Program Buildout 
 
Pages 239-240 C. Humboldt Unified School District’s Pandemic Update 
         
           11. ACTION 
Pages 241-250 A. Request for approval of the purchase of 12 busses and the trade-in of 12 busses. 
 
Pages 251-252 B. Request for approval to increase hourly pay for teachers to homebound students. 
 
Pages 253-278 C. Request for approval of the Supplemental Labor Partnership with ABM. 
 
Pages 279-280 D.  Request for approval of a new course, Guitar 3, at Bradshaw Mountain High School. 
 
Pages 281-282 E. Request for approval of a new course, Introduction to Statistics, at Bradshaw Mountain High 

…...School.  
 
Pages 283-320 F. Request for approval of the proposed 2022-2023 BMHS Course Description Guide. 
 
 12.  PERSONNEL 
Pages 321-324 A. Discussion and possible action to accept the evaluation report of the Superintendent for the 

2021-22 school year 
 
Pages 325-326 B. Discussion and possible action regarding payment of the first half of the Superintendent’s 

performance pay for the 2021-22 school year. 
 
 13. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  A.  Next Scheduled Board Meetings are:   
 

  
 14.      ADJOURNMENT 
 

Copies of agendas and supporting documentation relative to public meetings (with the exception of materials relating to possible executive sessions) are available at 
the District Administration Office during normal work hours, 24 hours prior to a meeting.  Please call ahead (759-4000) to arrange copies to be picked up.  
Documentation is also available on the District website www.humboldtunified.com; on the home page, go to the School Board tab →Board Packets →Select Year 
→Select Meeting Date.  (Note: Large packets may be saved in multiple sections). 
 
 

January 25, 2022 
February 08, 2022 
February 22, 2022 
March 08, 2022 
April 12, 2022 

6:30 PM 
6:30 PM 
6:30 PM 
6:30 PM 
6:30 PM 

Work Study Session 
Regular Meeting 
Work Study Session 
Regular Meeting 
Regular Meeting 

@  Transportation Training Facility 

@  Transportation Training Facility 

@  Transportation Training Facility 

@  Transportation Training Facility 
@  Transportation Training Facility 

http://www.humboldtunified.com/
















































































































































9L





















































11C































































BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN
HIGH SCHOOL

Course Description Guide
2022-2023



Table of Contents

Advanced Placement

AP Academy

Audit Policy

Career & Technical
Education

Class Schedules

Course / School Fees

Credit Recovery

Dual Enrollment

English

Fine & Performing Arts

World Languages

GPA

Grading Scale

Graduation

Homeschooled Students

Mathematics

7

7

6

43

5

64

9

8

12

36

31

4

8

3

6

18

MICTED

Mission

NCAA/NAIA

Non-Departmental

Online Learning

Physical Education

Pre-AP

Records

Registration

Salutatorian

Science

Sheltered English Immersion

Social Studies

Special Education

Testing

Valedictorian

55

2

8

59

63

34

7

4

6

4

27

17

24

7

5

4

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 1



Mission of the School Counseling Department

School Counseling is an integral part of the total education process at Bradshaw Mountain High
School. Our mission is to provide all students the opportunity to become responsible adults by
delivering a comprehensive competency-based school counseling program that will contribute
to their success in school and beyond.

School Counseling Curriculum
The Bradshaw Mountain High School counseling program promotes and enhances student learning in the
following domains:
● Academic development
● Career development
● Personal/social development

The school counseling curriculum is composed of organized objectives and is delivered by school counselors in
classrooms, small group settings, and individually. It is sequential in nature and designed to meet the
developmental needs of all students to ensure that every student receives an equal opportunity to participate
fully in the educational process.

Program benefits
For Students:
● Relates educational program to future success
● Facilitates career exploration and development
● Assists in acquiring knowledge of self (abilities, skills, and interests)
● Assures equitable access to educational opportunities

For Parents:
● Provides support for parents in advocating for their child’s academic, career, and personal/social

development
● Develops a system for their child’s long-range planning and learning
● Increases opportunities for parent/school interaction

Annual Nondiscrimination Notification

Humboldt Unified School District does not discriminate on the basis of sex, race, color, national origin, age, or
disability in its program or activities and provides equal access to the Boy Scouts and other designated youth
groups. Humboldt Unified School District Career and Technical Education department does not discriminate in
enrollment or access to any of the programs available, such as business, CNA, sports medicine, graphic design,
and fire science (Film & TV/Digital Photography, Nursing, Sports Med, Stagecraft, Networking, Marketing &
MICTED).

The lack of English language skills shall not be a barrier to admission or participation in the district’s activities
and programs. Humboldt Unified School District also does not discriminate in its hiring or employment
practices. This notice is provided as required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975
and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  The following people have been designated to handle
inquiries regarding the nondiscrimination policies:

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 2



Executive Director of Educational Services/Federal Programs
Christine Griffin
6411 N. Robert Rd.
Prescott Valley, AZ 86314
(928) 759-4000
robert.bueche@humboldtunified.com

Principal
Brett Dahl
6000 E. Long Look Dr.
Prescott Valley, AZ 86314
(928) 759-4000
brett.dahl@humboldtunified.com

El Distrito Unificado de las Escuelas Humboldt no discrimina en ninguna forma en lo que se refiere a lo
relacionado con el sexo, la raza, el color de la piel, la nacionalidad, la edad o incapacidad física en la
participación en sus programas y/o actividades y también provee acceso igual a los niños Scouts y a los otros
grupos que son designados para gente joven. El Departamento de Educación Técnica y de Carreras
Universitarias del Distrito Unificado de Escuelas Humboldt no discrimina la inscripción o el acceso a cualquier
programa disponible tales como: Fotografía digital, de películas y televisión, de enfermería, de medicina de
deportes, de teatro técnico, de conexión de redes, de mercadotecnia, y en MICTED*. La falta de un buen
conocimiento del idioma de inglés no es una barrera para la admisión o la participación en las actividades y en
los programas del Distrito. El Distrito tampoco discrimina en lo relacionado con contratos de trabajo o de
empleos. Las siguientes son las personas que han sido designadas y encargadas para hacer la investigación
necesaria con respecto a las disciplinas que existen en contra de cualquier clase de discriminación.

Translation Services
Any school document or information can be translated as needed. Contact the English Language Department
at 928-759-4047. Cualquier documento de la escuela y la información que se puede traducir como sea
necesario. Contacte el departamento de idioma inglés al 928-759-4047.

Graduation
The Humboldt Unified School District provides a graduation ceremony for students who have met state and
district requirements. Participation in commencement exercises is encouraged but is not mandatory. Students
who have successfully completed the credit and administrative requirements for graduation are eligible to
participate in commencement exercises.

To receive a Bradshaw Mountain High School diploma, a student must:
1. Complete a minimum of 22 credits before the ceremony.
2. Pass all academic requirements for graduation.
3. Complete all administrative procedures required.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 3



Valedictorian/Salutatorian
Valedictorian and Salutatorian are the top 1% of the senior class based on the following criteria:

1. Weighted letter grades from courses taken since the beginning of 9th grade (the first year after 8th grade)
from an accredited high school through the first semester of senior year (7 semesters total).

2. Grades earned on the student’s first attempt.
3. In the case of a tie, the valedictorian is awarded to the student who has the highest number of weighted

A’s.
4. A Student must attend BMHS as a full-time student both semesters of their senior year (fourth year after

8th grade).
5. Salutatorian(s)  make(s) up the remaining 1% of the senior class.

GPA/Class Rank
1. Class ranking is determined each semester beginning with the completion of the first semester of freshman

year and ending with the completion of the first semester of senior year.
2. Class rank is based on the unweighted grades earned in regular education classes.
3. Total grade points begin accumulating with the ninth grade. Grade points are divided by total units

attempted to produce the cumulative grade point average. Students are ranked according to grade point
average.

4. Weighted courses are offered at a 5.0 grading scale (A=5 points, B=4 points, C=3 points, D=2, F=0).
5. Unweighted courses are offered at a 4.0 grading scale (A=4 points, B=3 points, C=2 points, D=1, F=0).

Student Records
Students requesting official or unofficial transcripts should go to www.parchment.com to request an official
transcript at a small cost.

Changes to student information such as address, telephone number, and emergency contact must be made by
filling out the Student Information Change Form.

Legal documentation is required for all guardianship, student name, and marital status changes.

Test Out/Credit Transfer Procedures
Bradshaw Mountain High School students must fulfill the academic requirements for high school graduation.
Test out and credit transfer procedures exist in order to measure student learning and knowledge. Test out
procedures are not an option for BMHS students who wish to earn credit for courses that have not yet been
taken.

Test out procedures for courses at Bradshaw Mountain High School are as follows:
1. There may be a $25 fee for each test taken.
2. Students desiring to test out of a course must contact the department chair of that subject.
3. Each “test for credit” may have two segments:

A.   A work portfolio in which the student will produce projects, labs, etc.
B.   A test

4. Students may attempt to test out only once for credit in any course.
5. Students may not test out for credit in a class in which they are currently enrolled.
6. Students may not test out for credit as a method of repeating the course. (See Credit Recovery Policy)
7. All test outs must be completed by the end of the second week of each semester, unless it is due to a

transfer situation where a grade has yet to be assigned.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 4

http://www.parchment.com


Testing

State required tests:
● ACT Aspire for students in 9th grade.
● ACT for students in 11th grade.
● Arizona’s Instrument to Measure Standards in Science (AzSCI) for students in 11th grade.
● Assessments to measure the standards have been adopted by the State Board of Education and are

administered to all students as a requirement for graduation.
● Beginning with the class of 2017, all students in the state of Arizona must complete and pass a civics test

prior to graduation. This test may be given and passed beginning in middle school.
● Beginning with the class of 2020, all students must complete a CPR training.

○ NOTE: Test dates and requirements are subject to change (per Arizona Department of Education).

College and Military Admissions Testing:
● PSAT/NMSQT - Fall of 10th and/or 11th grade (predecessor to the SAT test)
● ACT - Spring of 11th grade; if missed, fall of 12th grade
● SAT - Spring of 11th grade; if missed, fall of 12th grade
● Armed Services Vocational Aptitude Battery (ASVAB) – Fall of 11th grade; if missed, fall of 12th grade

Advanced Placement:
Designated AP courses (AP) – Spring of 10th, 11th, and 12th grade

Grade Level Placement
Grade level placement is determined by the school year the student begins ninth grade. The cohort/graduation
year is calculated by adding four years to the year in which the student entered the ninth grade. Once set, the
cohort year does not change regardless of credits earned.

Class Schedules
Incoming 9th grade class schedules are determined by 8th grade teacher recommendation and 9th grade
course requirements with parent signature/approval. All other student schedules are determined during a
parent/student/counselor Education Career Action Plan (ECAP) meeting Fall of 9th grade.

ECAP (Education and Career Action Plan)
An ECAP reflects a student’s current plan of coursework, career aspirations, and extended learning
opportunities in order to develop the student’s individual academic and career goals. Every student in grades
9-12 shall develop an ECAP in consultation with a school counselor and parent/guardian. The student ECAP
may be revised throughout high school to ensure that the student has the opportunity to study careers of
his/her choice. Each spring students receive a printout of their selected courses for teacher and parent
signature/approval. This signed course selection sheet must be returned to your counselor for completion.

Revisions to ECAP
Each spring students receive a printout of their selected courses for teacher and parent signature/approval.
This signed course selection sheet must be returned to your counselor for completion.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 5



Late Enrollment and Audit Policy
Any student entering BMHS after the 10th day of school each semester without transfer grades is enrolled on
an audit basis for that semester. Auditing means that the student is required to attend class, participate in
classroom activities, complete all homework and take tests just as if they are receiving credit. Teachers will
enter an “AU” into the gradebook upon the student’s entrance in the course. At the end of the semester, the
“AU” may be removed and the final exam given for letter grade credit if the teacher determines that the
student has shown that he/she knows the material studied in class.

Pre-Registration and New Registration
Bradshaw Mountain High School students pre-register in the spring of the currently enrolled year. New student
registration begins two weeks prior to the beginning of school.

Schedule Corrections
Students may request to add/drop a course within the first 10 days of each semester. Schedule corrections
may be made under the following circumstances:
1.        Satisfying graduation requirements
2.        Incomplete schedule
3.        Balancing of class size
4.        Completion of credit recovery courses
5.        Teacher recommendation for student placement
6.        Cancellation of class
7.        A conflict of two classes offered only in the same period

If a student has enough credits to withdraw from a class while maintaining full-time status (six classes for fresh
– juniors, five classes for seniors, or seven classes with an Early Bird), he/she may request this within the first
20 days of each semester without penalty. Any course dropped after the 20th day will reflect a W/F
(withdraw/fail) on the official transcript, which will adversely affect GPA and Arizona Interscholastic
Association (AIA) eligibility. If, as a result, a new class is added, no credit will be granted for that class.

Homeschooled Students
Bradshaw Mountain High School welcomes homeschooled students. If a student was homeschooled for at
least one semester and wishes to earn credit for the courses completed, the parent must provide BMHS with a
transcript or a list of courses covered, and books and materials used. All home school credits are evaluated by
the administration to determine Pass/Fail or letter grade. Homeschooled students may participate in
extracurricular activities as long as they meet enrollment/attendance zone requirements.

Homebound Students
In the case of a serious medical condition, a student may be eligible for homebound services. Students who
must be absent from school due to an extended illness (90 days) may be eligible with medical documentation
from a physician. The school nurse should be contacted to obtain the homebound packet. Once the student
has a  completed application, medical documentation and a meeting with school administration, homebound
services may begin.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 6



Special Education Services
Humboldt Unified School District provides a full continuum of special education supports and services to
eligible students as stated on their Individual Education Program (IEP) under IDEA. Each eligible student will be
enrolled in classes based on the services listed on their IEP. The student may take a general education class, a
co-taught general education class (taught by a general education teacher and a special education teacher) or a
class taught by a special education teacher. Please note: Course titles are found within the course description
for each class and on the schedule and transcript of the student(s) enrolled in these classes. The key for the
course titles is listed at the end of each department where applicable.

BMHS Advanced Placement (AP)
Advanced Placement (AP) is a national program, which Bradshaw Mountain High School offers in cooperation
with the College Board to provide students the opportunity to pursue rigorous coursework, which research
demonstrates increases students’ chances for long-term success. It is a program of credit by examination for
college level studies pursued in high school. Advanced Placement courses are open to all students in high
school and may provide college level credit based on their performance on an exam at the end of the course.
Students who excel in a given subject may take the AP exam without enrolling in the AP course. The College
Board charges a set fee for each exam.

AP exams are scored on a scale of 1 to 5. Students who earn a 4 or 5 on an AP exam will have their BMHS 1st
and 2nd semester grades changed to an A; a score of 3 will result in the student’s course grade being increased
one letter grade for both semesters. A score of 1 or 2 will not affect the student’s course grade. A grade of F in
the course will not be changed regardless of the AP exam score.

AP Academy
The AP Academy is a school within a school that is designated for students interested in pursuing the AP
Diploma. The AP Academy is by application only. Please contact the school for more information.

Class Level Placement
Students in AP, Pre-AP, and Honors courses have until the first quarter report to determine if the accelerated
level is appropriate. If not, level change paperwork must be initiated through the teacher at that time.

BMHS Pre-AP Program
The mission of the Pre-AP Program at Bradshaw Mountain High School is to provide enriched opportunities for
academic excellence to highly motivated students. Through a comprehensive plan of instruction across grade
levels and content areas, students will experience a curriculum that emphasizes analytical thinking, creative
inquiry, and independent learning. Pre-AP classes provide a strong foundation for AP coursework.
Pre-AP courses are weighted on a 5.0 grading scale.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 7



Dual Enrollment Program
Humboldt Unified School District and Yavapai Community College (YCC) offer a cooperative program to junior
and senior students to earn dual high school and college credits.

Dual credit courses are offered on the high school campus during the student’s regularly scheduled day.
Enrollment requires that students receive an appropriate score on a skills assessment and/or have the required
college course prerequisite. These courses are $10/Yavapai College credit, and students are required to
purchase required textbooks or other resources. Students will have to register as a Yavapai student. NOTICE: A
student’s grade earned in a college credit class MAY affect eligibility for future financial aid! This includes dual
enrollment courses taken during high school.

Dual Credit courses at Bradshaw Mountain High School are limited. For an explanation of dual credit courses,
see the specific department section of this booklet.

NCAA/NAIA Eligibility
All high school athletes who desire to enroll and compete as college freshmen in a Division I or Division II
institution must complete the NCAA Initial Eligibility Center Release Form or the NAIA Eligibility Center Release
Form at the end of the junior year. For more information and to register, go to www.ncaa.org/eligibilitycenter
or www.playnaia.org. Register to take the ACT and/or SAT and use the NCAA Eligibility Center code “9999” and
for the NAIA Eligibility Center use code “9876.” Visit the counseling office to have your transcript uploaded and
to learn more about a submission of a fee waiver.

Grades
Semester grades are final. Parents/ guardians wishing to discuss grades should contact the teacher by leaving a
message on their voicemail or by email. Parents are encouraged to access this information through FamilyLink
on the district website.

Grading Scale
90-100% = A
80-89% = B
70-79% = C
60-69% = D
59-below = F
I = Incomplete
AU = Audit
NC = No Credit

FamilyLink
Parents and students can access information, such as: attendance, grades, schedule and the school calendar
through the internet by logging into the Humboldt Unified School District website
(www.humboldtunified.com).  Information on how to access Family Link is available in the school counseling
department.

Progress Reports/Report Cards
Progress reports are distributed to students every 4.5 weeks. Semester grades are mailed at the conclusion of
the fall and spring semesters, showing credit earned on the transcript.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 8

http://www.ncaa.org/eligibilitycenter
http://www.playnaia.org/


Incompletes (I)
Students who receive an incomplete (I) at the end of the semester must make up the required work within
two weeks or the grade will default to an F (fail). Extreme emergencies may provide an exception to this policy
and are considered on a case-by-case basis. Administrative approval is needed for an incomplete to be given as
a final grade on the report card.

Loss of Credit (NC)
Students who are absent (excused and unexcused) more than 9 school days per semester will receive NO
CREDIT (NC) for that class. Students have the right to appeal the Loss of Credit. Contact the Attendance Office
for additional information.

Credit Recovery
Students who have failed courses or wish to improve their grades may do so online through our credit recovery
program. Students must complete their online registration with their school counselor. Seniors must complete
all credit recovery coursework by the first week in May in order to participate in the graduation ceremony.
There is a fee charged for all credit recovery courses.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 9



ACADEMIC REQUIREMENTS FOR HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION

BMHS
Diploma

Silver
Diploma*

Gold
Diploma*

AP Academy
Diploma*

REQUIRED CORE COURSES

ENGLISH 4 credits 4 credits 4 credits 4 credits

MATHEMATICS 4 credits 4 credits 4 credits 4 credits

SCIENCE 3 credits 3 credits 3 credits 3 credits

WORLD HISTORY AND GEOGRAPHY 1 credit 1 credit 1 credit 1 credit

U.S. HISTORY 1 credit 1 credit 1 credit 1 credit

AMERICAN GOVERNMENT 0.5 credit 0.5 credit 0.5 credit 0.5 credit

ECONOMICS 0.5 credit 0.5 credit 0.5 credit 0.5 credit

ADDITIONAL CORE CREDIT* not necessary 1 credit 1 credit not necessary

OTHER REQUIRED COURSES

PHYSICAL EDUCATION 1 credit 1 credit 1 credit 1 credit

CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION 1 credit 1 credit 1 credit 1 credit

FINE ARTS 1 credit 1 credit 1 credit 1 credit

ELECTIVES 5 credits 4 credits 4 credits 4 credits

ACADEMY PREP not necessary not necessary not necessary 1 credit

FOREIGN LANGUAGE not necessary 2 credits 2 credits 2 credits

MEET STATE TESTING REQUIREMENTS Yes Yes Yes Yes

TOTAL 22 24 24 24

All STUDENTS MUST MEET THE ACADEMIC REQUIREMENTS FOR THE BMHS DIPLOMA, which includes
meeting the requirements for state-mandated testing.

*Class of 2016 & beyond – the full-time, four-year AVID student waives the 1.0 additional core credit
requirement for Silver/Gold Diploma.

*Gold and Silver Diploma candidates will take a 1.0 additional credit in any of the college core areas –
English, math, science, social studies, foreign language, or fine arts.

*Gold, Silver, and AP Academy Diploma candidates (class of 2020 and beyond) will take four years of
mathematics, including 1.0 math credit during the senior year.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 10



*Silver Diploma
1. Earn 24 credits with a grade of “C” or better in all classes in which they have been enrolled as a high

school student.
2. Take four years of mathematics, including 1.0 math credit during the senior year.

*Gold Diploma
1. Earn 24 credits with a “C” or better in all classes in which enrolled as a high school student.
2. Take four years of mathematics, including 1.0 math credit during the senior year.
3. Receive a 3 or better on at least two AP tests by the end of junior year.
4. Take a minimum of four AP classes in four years of high school.

*AP Diploma
1. Earn 24 credits with a “C” or better in all classes in which enrolled as a high school student.
2. Take four years of mathematics, including 1.0 math credit during the senior year.
3. Take at least six AP courses throughout the four years of high school.
4. Remain in the AP Academy.

*AP Capstone Diploma
1.  Earn 24 credits with a “C” or better in all classes in which enrolled as a high school student.
2.  Take four years of mathematics, including 1.0 math credit during the senior year.
3.  Take at least six AP courses throughout the four years of high school.
4.  Take AP Seminar and score 3 or higher, AP Research and score 3 or higher, take 4 additional AP Exams

earning a score of 3 or higher on each exam.
5.  Remain in the AP Academy.

AGEC-A (Arizona General Education Curriculum) Opportunity
The AGEC-A is a 35 semester-credit general education curriculum block that fulfills the lower division general
education requirements (foundational studies) from Arizona public community college to any other Arizona

public community college or university. Students who take advantage of the AGEC-A opportunities can
continue to participate in all of Bradshaw Mountain High School’s opportunities (pre-AP, AP, AP Academy,

CTED, dual enrollment, and extracurriculars). Students who successfully complete all 35 credits through the
AGEC-A and Yavapai College will be accepted at any of Arizona’s public post-secondary institutions and courses

will transfer without loss of credit. Students must maintain a minimum of a 2.5 GPA. Students who pass
certain Advanced Placement (AP) tests meeting minimum cut scores can count AP earned credits as part of the

35-credit AGEC-A block. Yavapai College tuition may be required for concurrent coursework.

Subject Area Requirements
● First Year Composition (6 credits)
● Mathematics (3 credits)
● Physical and Biological Sciences (8 credits - 2 classes)
● Arts and Humanities (6-9 credits selected from at least two different course prefixes)
● Social and Behavioral Sciences (6-9 credits selected from at least two different course prefixes)
● Communication (0-3 credits)
● Options (0-6 credits)

Students must complete a course from each of the following AGEC Special Awareness areas:
● Intensive Writing/Critical Inquiry (IWR)
● Ethnic/Race/Gender (ERG) Awareness
● Global/International or Historical (GIH)

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 11



ENGLISH

BMHS offers a variety of English courses centered on the Arizona State Standards to help
students prepare for their ultimate post-high school goals. Four credits of English are

required for graduation. Pre-AP and AP courses are demanding, but open to all students.

English 9
Grade: 9 English credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None
This course uses the MyPerspectives program to deepen students’ understanding of the elements of fiction,
nonfiction, poetry, and drama through the study of short stories, novels, poems, plays, historical documents,
and nonfiction selections. Students analyze and compare fiction and nonfiction selections with a focus on
comprehensive and analytical strategies.  Students will learn how to improve their fiction, nonfiction,
functional, explanatory, and argumentative writing skills. Students work collaboratively and independently to
master the skills practiced within the whole class learning in order to prepare for their future courses and state
testing requirements. Course titles: English 9, English 9 E, English 9 M, English 9 CC, English 9 SS

Pre-AP English 9
Grade: 9 English credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None (Successful completion of summer reading required)
Pre-AP English 9 is a comprehensive reading and writing class designed with rigorous lessons to prepare
students for Pre-AP English 10 and state testing requirements. Students will learn how to annotate and gather
textual evidence while analyzing short stories, novels, poems, plays, historical documents, and  nonfiction
selections. There will be a focus on improving both academic and personal vocabulary. Students will also learn
how to improve their fiction, nonfiction, functional, explanatory, and argumentative writing skills. Students will
work both independently and in a collaborative work environment.

English 9 - 180 / Read 180
Grade: 9 English/Elective credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit for each course
Placement: Determined by test scores and grades.
READ 180 is a specialized reading course designed to enable identified high school students to improve reading
comprehension, increase understanding of narrative and expository text structures including academic
reading, functional reading, informational reading and technical reading, in order to learn more effectively
from subject-matter textbooks in science, history/social  studies, math, and English. Students are introduced to
narrative and expository organizational patterns, as well as the academic language used in the aforementioned
content classes. This is accomplished through an intensive 2-hour block class every day that utilizes software,
independent reading, and whole and small group instruction.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 12



English 10 - Read 180
Grade: 10 English credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit for each course
Placement: Determined by test scores and grades.
READ 180 is a specialized reading course designed to enable identified high school students to improve reading
comprehension, increase understanding of narrative and expository text structures including academic
reading, functional reading, informational reading and technical reading, in order to learn more effectively
from subject-matter textbooks in science, history/social  studies, math, and English. Students are introduced to
narrative and expository organizational patterns, as well as the academic language used in the aforementioned
content classes. This is accomplished through an intensive class every day that utilizes software, independent
reading, and whole and small group instruction.

English 10
Grade: 10 English credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None
This course uses the MyPerspectives program to deepen students’ understanding of the elements of fiction,
poetry, and nonfiction through the study of short stories, novels, poems, historical documents, and varied
nonfiction selections. Students analyze and compare fiction and nonfiction selections with a special focus on
comprehensive and analytical strategies.  Students work collaboratively and independently to master the skills
practiced within the whole class learning. Students continue to work toward mastery while working through
the MyPersepectives units and completing the reading and writing assignments found in their workbooks,
online, and through class participation. Course titles: English 10, English 10 E, English 10 M, English 10 CC,
English 10 SS

Pre-AP English 10
Grade: 10 English credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Recommended successful completion of Pre-AP English 9 or teacher recommendation
This is a rigorous, fast-paced course that serves as a transition into the AP English and AP Capstone courses and
is relevant for both college and career readiness. Students will continue to refine their close reading, analytical
writing, and language skills introduced in Pre-AP English 9. Students will read closely and analyze a range of
complex literary and informational texts, recognize the importance of textual evidence and incorporate it
effectively in writing and speaking, and understand how writers and speakers use specific words and sentences
to move the thoughts, emotions, and actions of readers and listeners. Completion of assigned summer reading
is required.

English 11
Grade: 11 English credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: English 10 or grade-level placement
This course covers American literature from the Revolutionary War era to the present. Students study the
styles, techniques, philosophies and ideas of major American writers, as well as the historical setting and
cultural aspects which influenced their works. Students regularly write brief formative assessments – quick
writes, journals, and reader responses, as well as more formal essays: a documented critique/analysis with an
argumentative voice and an expository essay that is a “think-piece” in which the students develop their own
perspectives on issues. Course titles: English 11, English 11 E, English 11 M, English 11 CC, English 11 SS

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 13



AP English Literature and Composition
Grades: 11-12 English credit
Fee: AP exam fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Recommended successful completion of Pre-AP English 10, AP English Language and
Composition, or teacher recommendation
This challenging course prepares students for the Advanced Placement Exam in Literature and aligns with an
introductory college-level literary analysis course.  This is the course for literature lovers who want to broaden
and enrich their vocabulary, learn to read more closely and critically, and discover and deepen their
understanding of how a writer uses language and literary strategies to convey meaning and deepen our
reading pleasure. A wide variety of texts, ranging from the Greek classics and Shakespeare through
contemporary literature, are studied. Students will learn to write rhetorical analyses of both poetry and prose
and use text to support literary arguments of theme, characterization, symbolism, and so on.

English 12
Grade: 12 English credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: English 11 or grade-level placement
This course focuses on British literature as it relates to contemporary society, as well as some selections from
world literature and American literature. Students practice writing narrative, expository research, and
documented essays about various genres of literature, ranging from the Anglo-Saxon period to the twentieth
century. The writing components of this class emphasizes the writing process and good editing, which includes
grammar, usage, and mechanics. Course titles: English 12, English 12 E, English 12 M, English 12 CC, English 12
SS

College English 101
Grade: 12 English credit
Fee: $10/YC credit Semester: 0.5 credit
Placement: Satisfactory fulfillment of YC credit: 3.0 credits with a grade of C or higher
all Yavapai College Dual Enrollment requirements
Students compose expository and argumentative essays for specific audiences with emphasis on the process of
writing, reading, critical thinking and introduction to research and documentation. The main focus of the
course is the argumentative process, with a minimum of 4500 words of “formal” student writing.

College English 102
Grade: 12 English credit
Fee: $10/YC credit Semester: 0.5 credit
Prerequisite: Grade of “C” or higher in ENG 101 YC credit: 3.0 credits with a grade of C or higher
Students continue to hone their reading, research, writing, and critical thinking skills often through, but not
exclusive to,  the lens of literary analysis. This course includes researching and writing several critical essays
with  a minimum of 5000 words of “formal” student writing.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 14



AP CAPSTONE DIPLOMA AND AP SEMINAR AND RESEARCH CERTIFICATE
Grade: 11-12 English/Elective credit
Fee: AP exam fee Semester: 0.5 credit
The College Board’s AP Capstone is an innovative college-level program based on two new courses – AP
Seminar and AP Research – that complement and enhance discipline-specific AP courses. The program
provides students with an opportunity to engage in challenging scholarly practice of the core academic skills
necessary for successful college completion. The ability to think independently, write effectively, research,
collaborate, and learn across disciplines is essential for success in college, career, and beyond.

Students who earn scores of 3 or higher in AP Seminar and AP Research and on four additional AP Exams of
their choosing will receive the AP Capstone Diploma.

Students who earn scores of 3 or higher in AP Seminar and AP Research but not on four additional AP Exams
will receive the AP Seminar and Research Certificate.

AP Seminar (Component I)
Prerequisite: Recommended successful completion of Pre-AP English 9 and 10, pre-AP/AP science and social
studies
AP Seminar is the foundational course of the AP Capstone program and engages students in cross-curricular
conversations that explore the complexities of academic and real-world topics and issues by analyzing
divergent perspectives. Using an inquiry framework, students practice reading and analyzing articles, research
studies, and foundational literary and philosophical texts; listening to and viewing speeches, broadcasts, and
personal accounts; and experiencing artistic works and performances. Students learn to synthesize information
from multiple sources, develop their own perspectives in research-based written essays, and design and
deliver oral and visual presentations, both individually and as part of a team. Ultimately, the course aims to
equip students with the power to analyze and evaluate information with accuracy and precision in order to
craft and communicate evidence-based arguments.

Students in AP Seminar will complete a team project and presentation, an individual research-based essay and
presentation, and an end-of-course exam.

AP Research (Component II)
Prerequisite: Successful completion of AP Seminar
AP Research builds on the foundational skills developed in AP Seminar, allowing students to deeply explore an
academic topic, problem, or issue of individual interest. Through this exploration, students design, plan, and
conduct a year-long research based investigation to address a research question. In this course, students
further their skills acquired in AP Seminar by understanding research methodology; employing ethical research
practices; and accessing, analyzing, and synthesizing information as they address a research question.

Students in AP Research will complete an academic paper, prepare a presentation and oral defense of their
research.

Bradshaw Mountain High School looks forward to the addition of the AP Capstone program with great
enthusiasm and expectation! We know the addition of these programs will challenge our bright young learners
and introduce them to new learning that will prepare them for whatever path they choose to pursue beyond
Bradshaw Mountain High School!

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 15



Key for Course Titles

E Essentials - This class is designed to address the standards of the course while individualizing to meet
student needs. It addresses the essential content in a small group setting.

M Modified Class - This is a general education class that is modified to meet students' individual learning
needs for students that access a modified curriculum.

CC Core Connectors - This is a class that is modified to meet students' individual learning needs in a small
group setting.

SS Special School - This is a specially designed program for students who require a separate location for
delivery of services.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 16



SHELTERED ENGLISH IMMERSION

Humboldt Unified School District offers research-based programs of Structured English
Immersion language instruction to English Language Learners enrolled in the district.

English Language Development instruction includes an emphasis on grammar, listening,
speaking, reading, and writing. Students are placed in SEI classes and/or English Language
Arts classes based on Arizona English Language Learner Assessment scores and guidelines

established by the Arizona Department of Education.

SEI English
Grades: 9-12 English or SEI credit
Fee: None Elective credit for additional SEI courses
Placement: determined solely by Year: 1.0 credit/course
Arizona English Language Learner Assessment (AZELLA) scores.

SEI Block 1
Integrated reading, writing, listening, and speaking

SEI Block 2
Focused language instruction, grammar, and vocabulary

SEI Intermediate 1
Integrated reading, writing, listening, and speaking

SEI Intermediate 2
Focused language instruction, grammar, and vocabulary

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 17



MATHEMATICS

The classes of 2018 and beyond are required to take four credits of mathematics which are to
include: Algebra I, Geometry, Algebra II and one year of significant math beyond Algebra II.

ALL BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS ARE EXPECTED TO TAKE A MATH
COURSE ALL FOUR YEARS THEY ARE IN HIGH SCHOOL, POSSIBLY EARNING

MORE THAN FOUR CREDITS BEFORE GRADUATING.

College-bound students: Arizona universities currently require a minimum of four years of
math: Algebra I, Geometry, Algebra II and one higher math for which Algebra II is a
prerequisite.

RECOMMENDED SEQUENCE

High School Diploma College Prep Advanced Placement

9 Algebra IA or
Algebra I

Algebra I Pre-AP Geometry or
Pre-AP Algebra II

10 Algebra IB or
Geometry

Geometry Pre-AP Geometry or
Pre-AP Algebra II or

Pre-Calculus (MAT 182/183)*

11 Geometry or
Algebra II

Algebra II Pre-AP Algebra II or
Pre-Calculus (MAT 182/183)* or

AP Stats or
AP Calculus AB

12 Business/Technical Math or
Advanced Mathematics or

Algebra II

Advanced Mathematics/
College Math (MAT 142)* or

AP Statistics or
Pre-Calculus (MAT 182/183)*

Pre-Calculus (MAT 182/182)* or
AP Statistics or

AP Calculus AB or
AP Calculus BC

* Dual credit OPTION available

Note: Students may shift from one sequence to the appropriate level in another sequence at semester based
on grades and test scores with a teacher recommendation and parent approval.  See individual course
requirements for prerequisites.

Yavapai College Requirements for Dual Enrollment:
1. Students need to meet the YC standards for math and reading.  They can accomplish this by:
2. Having qualifying SAT or ACT scores (either math or reading or both), OR
3. A qualifying score on both the math AND reading Accuplacer test

Recommended Math Supplies:
1. A compass, protractor, and ruler for Geometry.
2. Several spiral notebooks with college-ruled paper and graph paper.
3. A graphing calculator (TI-84) is recommended for math classes Algebra II and higher, and all Pre-AP classes.
4. A scientific calculator is recommended for Algebra 1 and higher.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 18



Algebra IA
Grades: 9-12 Math credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Placement: Teacher recommendation only
Students will be placed in this course through teacher recommendation only. Students will take the entire
year to study the topics covered in the first semester of Algebra I. Algebra IA includes the study of the
following topics: graphing stories, structures of expressions, number systems and sets, algebraic operations,
equations and inequalities, algebraic fractions, systems with two variables, graphing, linear and exponential
sequences.  This course will also introduce first semester Geometry concepts: Transversals and their angles,
Rigid and Non-Rigid Transformations, and Similar and Congruent Figures. Course titles: Algebra 1A, Algebra
1A E, Algebra 1A M, Algebra 1A CC, Algebra 1A SS

Algebra IB
Grades: 10-12 Math credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Placement: Teacher recommendation only
Students will be placed in this course through teacher recommendation only. Students will take the entire
year to study the topics covered in the second semester of Algebra I. Algebra IB includes the study of the
following topics: Graphing Functions, Quadratic Expressions and Functions, Function Transformations and
Modeling.  This course will also introduce second semester Geometry concepts: Pythagorean Theorem,
Polygons, Perimeter, Area, Volume, Surface Area, and Circles. Course titles: Algebra 1B, Algebra 1B E, Algebra
1B M, Algebra 1B CC, Algebra 1B SS

Algebra I
Grades: 9-12 Math credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: *The majority of incoming freshmen will enroll in this course.
This course provides students experiences with problem solving and patterns,  graphing stories, structures of
expressions, number systems and sets, algebraic operations, equations and inequalities, algebraic fractions,
systems with two variables, graphing, linear and exponential sequences, graphing functions, quadratic
expressions and functions, function transformations and modeling . Course titles: Algebra 1, Algebra 1 E,
Algebra 1 M, Algebra 1 CC, Algebra 1 SS

Geometry
Grades: 10-12 Math credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Algebra I
Geometry is the study of the relationships between points, lines, and planes. Geometry requires students to
develop logical reasoning and problem solving skills as they study the Geometry topics such as constructions,
angles, proofs, transformations, congruence, similarity, triangles, trigonometry, perpendicular lines,  parallel
lines and planes, quadrilaterals, the Pythagorean Theorem, polygons, coordinate geometry, perimeter, area,
surface area, volume, and circles. The deductive method of proof is emphasized throughout the course and the
understanding and use of Algebra skills are relied upon throughout these topics. Course titles: Geometry,
Geometry E, Geometry M, Geometry CC, Geometry SS

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 19



Pre-AP Geometry
Grades: 9-10 Math credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Algebra I in 8th grade and/or teacher recommendation, “B” or higher
in Algebra I
Pre-AP Geometry is designed specifically for those students who have shown exceptional talent in Algebra I.
The curriculum is the same as regular Geometry, but may proceed at a more accelerated pace with a more
in-depth coverage of all topics. Greater emphasis is placed on college and AP testing preparation. (See
Geometry) Note: Students may accept the challenge of taking Pre-AP courses at any point in their high
school career; however, should the student’s average drop below a C at semester, the student may be placed
in regular college preparatory math.

Algebra II
Grades: 10-12 Math credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Algebra I (or IA & IB) plus Geometry with a passing grade
Algebra II is a course that uses the skills and concepts learned in Algebra I, and emphasizes facility with
algebraic expressions and forms, especially linear and quadratic forms, powers and roots, and functions based
on these concepts: Students study logarithmic, trigonometric, polynomial, and other special functions both for
their abstract properties and as tools for modeling real-world situations. There is also a strong emphasis on
rational expressions throughout the year.   (Note:  A graphing calculator is required.) Course titles: Algebra II,
Algebra II E, Algebra II M, Algebra II CC, Algebra II SS

Pre-AP Algebra II
Grades: 10-12 Math credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Algebra I, Geometry, teacher recommendation, “C” or higher in Pre-AP Geometry or “B” or
higher in Geometry
Pre-AP Algebra II is designed specifically for those students who have shown exceptional talent in Algebra I and
Geometry. The curriculum is rigorous and is taught at an accelerated pace to prepare students for Precalculus.
Students utilize the skills and concepts from Algebra I to progress into: linear and quadratic expressions,
equations, graphing, radical, exponential, and logarithmic expressions and equations; polynomial operations
and functions; matrix operations and manipulation; statistical analysis and probability; conic sections and their
graphs; trigonometric functions and equations.  There is also a strong emphasis on rational expressions
throughout the year. Note: Students may accept the challenge of taking Pre-AP courses at any point in their
high school career; however, should the student’s average drop below a C at semester, the student may be
placed in regular college preparatory math.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 20



Business/Technical Math
Grade: 12 Math credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite:  Successful completion of Algebra II with a “D” or lower or grade level placement
In this course, students explore specific uses of mathematics in today’s business and technological world.
Emphasis is placed on skills used in occupations in the Prescott Valley and surrounding areas. Basic algebra and
geometry skills are reviewed through the use of technology (computers and graphing calculators). This class is
designed for seniors only. Colleges do not recognize this class as a math credit. Topics covered include: gross
and net pay, federal, state and local taxes, budgeting, banking services, loans, credit cards, finance charges,
comparison shopping, homeownership, investments, business statistics and probability. This course counts as
one of the four year math requirements with significant mathematics content including compound interest,
amortization and spreadsheets. Course titles: BTM, BTM E, BTM M, BTM CC, BTM CC, BTM SS

Advanced Math (Semester 1 only)
Grades: 11-12 Math credit
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Algebra II with a “C” or better
Survey of mathematical topics and applications. This course includes statistics, probability, exponential
functions, finance, dimensional analysis and other selected discrete math topics. Note: Computer use and
graphing calculator required. (TI-84 recommended) This course is not offered for dual enrollment. It is high
school credit only.

College Math (MAT 142)* (Semester 1 only)
Grades 11 - 12 Math credit
Fee: $10/college credit Semester: 0.5 credit
Placement: Satisfactory fulfillment of all Yavapai College Dual Enrollment requirements
Survey of mathematical topics and applications. This course includes statistics, probability, exponential
functions, finance, dimensional analysis and other selected discrete math topics. Note: Computer use and
graphing calculator required. (TI-84 recommended) Prerequisite: Two years of high school algebra and one
year of geometry completed within the last 4 years.  Yavapai College: 3 Credit Hours. Should be taken by all
non-STEM, and non - business majors)

College Algebra (MAT 152)* (Semester 1 only)
Grades: 11-12 Math credit
Fee: $10/college credit Semester: 0.5 credit
Placement: Satisfactory fulfillment of all Yavapai College Dual Enrollment requirements
Modeling of applications using linear, quadratic, exponential and logarithmic functions. Introduction to solving
systems of equations using matrices. Duplicate credit for MAT 152 and/or MAT 187 will not be awarded.  Note:
A graphing calculator is required. (Yavapai College: 3 credit hours. Should be taken by all business majors)

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 21



Financial Math (Semester 2 only)
Grades 11-12 Math/Elective credit
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit
Placement: Prerequisite: Successful completion of Algebra II with a “C” or better
A survey of personal financial math topics.  Topics include: Paystubs, taxes, credit, checking accounts, savings
accounts, loans, mortgages, investments, and budgets.  This course will be offered for all students taking
Advanced Math, College Math, or College Algebra 1st semester.  In addition, those students enrolled in
Pre-Calculus and Calculus may take this semester as an additional elective credit to learn more about personal
finance in preparation for life after high school graduation.

Introduction to Statistics
Grades: 12 Math Credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Placement: Successful completion of Advanced/College Math and Financial Math junior year
Introduction to Statistics is a fourth year math class (Seniors only) that consists of two semesters of high
school academic work that is comparable to the first semester statistics courses in colleges and universities.
The purpose of this course is to introduce students to the major concepts and tools for collecting, analyzing,
and drawing conclusions from data. Note: Computer use and graphing calculator required (TI-84
recommended).

Students are exposed to four broad conceptual themes:
Exploring Data: Observing patterns and departures from patterns
Planning a Study: Deciding what and how to measure
Anticipating Patterns in Advance: Producing models using probability and simulation
Statistical Inference: Confirming models

Precalculus (MAT 182/183)*
Grades: 10-12 Math credit
Fee: $10/college credit Year: 1.0 credit
Placement: Satisfactory fulfillment of all Yavapai College Dual Enrollment requirements
This course is designed for the student with a strong background in high school mathematics.   Topics covered
include:  The first semester in MAT 182 (3 credits)-- functions and their graphs (linear, quadratic, exponential,
rational, circular and logarithmic); and in the second semester in MAT 183 (2 credit)--trigonometry, and
analytical geometry.  Topics from college algebra and trigonometry essential to the study of calculus and
analytic geometry will also be covered.  Duplicate credit for MAT 142 and/or MAT 152 will not be awarded.
Credit is earned at Yavapai College only after successfully completing both semesters with an average score of
a “C” or better.  (Note: A graphing calculator is required) (Yavapai College: 5 credit hours)

AP Calculus AB
Grades: 11-12 Math credit
Fee: AP Exam Fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Precalculus with a grade of “C” or better
AP Calculus consists of two semesters of high school academic work that is comparable to the first semester
calculus courses in colleges and universities. This course emphasizes the study of limits, derivatives, and
integration. It is expected that students who take this class seek college credit and/or placement by attempting
the AP Calculus AB Exam. Students who successfully complete the course and examination may receive credit
and/or advanced placement for a one-semester introductory college calculus course. A graphing calculator is
required for the course and the exam.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 22



AP Calculus BC
Grades: 11-12 Math credit
Fee: AP Exam Fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of AP Calculus AB with a grade of “C” or better
AP Calculus BC includes all AP Calculus AB topics with additional topics of parametric equations, polar
functions, vector equations, and polynomial approximations and series. It is expected that students who take
this class seek college credit and/or placement by attempting the AP Calculus BC Exam. Students who
successfully complete the course and examination may receive credit and/or advanced placement for a
one-semester introductory college calculus course. A graphing calculator is required for the course and the
exam.

AP Statistics
Grades: 11-12 Math credit
Fee: AP Exam Fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Algebra II with a grade of “C” or better
AP Statistics consists of two semesters of high school academic work that is comparable to the first semester
statistics courses in colleges and universities. The purpose of this course is to introduce students to the major
concepts and tools for collecting, analyzing, and drawing conclusions from data. Note: Computer use and
graphing calculator required for course and the exam. (TI-84 recommended)

Students are exposed to four broad conceptual themes:
Exploring Data: Observing patterns and departures from patterns
Planning a Study: Deciding what and how to measure
Anticipating Patterns in Advance: Producing models using probability and simulation
Statistical Inference: Confirming models

It is expected that students who take this class seek college credit and/or placement by attempting the AP
Statistics Exam.  Students who successfully complete the course and examination may receive credit and/or
advanced placement for a one-semester introductory college statistics course. A graphing calculator is required
for the course and the exam.

Key for Course Titles

E Essentials - This class is designed to address the standards of the course while individualizing to meet
student needs. It addresses the essential content in a small group setting.

M Modified Class - This is a general education class that is modified to meet students' individual learning
needs for students that access a modified curriculum.

CC Core Connectors - This is a class that is modified to meet students' individual learning needs in a small
group setting.

SS Special School - This is a specially designed program for students who require a separate location for
delivery of services.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 23



SOCIAL STUDIES

World History and Geography
Grade: 10 Social Studies credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None
Students will first review the basic concepts of geography and throughout the year will see the influence that
geography has on the development of Western and Non-Western civilizations. Through careful study, the
student is introduced to the study of the past and is encouraged to explore its relevance to the present. The
course is broken down into the following units: Foundations of Western and Non-Western Civilizations –
Ancient and Medieval life, Transition to Modern Times – Renaissance, Reformation, and the Rise of Nation
States; Revolutions and the Rise of the Nationalism; The Industrial Revolution; World Wars and Totalitarianism;
The world from 1945 to present. Course titles: World History, World History E, World History M, World History
CC, World History SS

AP World History: Modern
Grade: 10 Social Studies credit
Fee: AP exam fee Year: 1.0 credit
Placement: Recommended to have completed Pre-AP English 9 with a C or better, or an A or B in English 9
In AP World History: Modern, students investigate significant events, individuals, developments, and processes
from 1200 to the present. Students develop and use the same skills, practices, and methods employed by
historians: analyzing primary and secondary sources; developing historical arguments; making historical
connections; and utilizing reasoning about comparison, causation, and continuity and change over time. The
course provides six themes that students explore throughout the course in order to make connections among
historical developments in different times and places: humans and the environment, cultural developments
and interactions, governance, economic systems, social interactions and organization, and technology and
innovation.. This course prepares students to pass the Advanced Placement Exam for World History:Modern
for college credit, therefore the academic demands of this class are exacting and challenging.

United States History
Grade: 11 Social Studies credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Completion of World History
This course is a survey of the people and events that influenced the development of the United States of
America. Students follow the history of our nation and the democratic way of life from the times of
colonization to the present. Course titles: U.S. History, U.S. History E, U.S. History M, U.S. History CC, U.S.
History SS

AP United States History
Grade: 11 Social Studies credit
Fee: AP exam fee Year: 1.0 credit
Placement: Recommended to have completed Pre-AP English 10 with a C or higher, or an A or B in English 10
This is an in-depth study of the history of the United States through the use of critical thinking skills, analysis
and discussion. Students write a variety of essays in class using historical documents and their knowledge of
the history of America. This course prepares students for the Advanced Placement Exam in United States
History, for which college credit may be earned.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 24



American Government
Grade: 12 Social Studies credit
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit
Prerequisite: Completion of World and U.S. History
This course covers the origin and philosophy behind the creation of our Constitution. It includes an exploration
of the three different branches of the national government as well as state government. The course also
discusses political campaigns, voting, the federal bureaucracy, Supreme Court cases, original documents,
current government issues, and past government crises. Included is a newspaper portfolio project related to
government concepts. Course titles: Am. Govt, Am. Govt E, Am. Govt M, Am. Govt CC, Am. Govt SS

AP United States Government and Politics
Grade: 12 Social Studies credit
Fee: AP exam fee Year: 1.0 credit
Placement: Completion of World and U.S. History
This course covers the origin and philosophy behind the creation of our Constitution. It includes an exploration
of the three different branches of the national government and a comparison with the functions of the state
governments. The course also discusses political campaigns, voting, the federal bureaucracy, original
documents, current government issues, and past government crises.

Economics
Grade: 12 Social Studies credit
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit
Prerequisite: Completion of World and U.S. History
This course covers the basics of macroeconomics, such as the law of supply & demand, capitalism,
inflation, recession, monetary policy, international trade and unemployment. It also covers
microeconomics, such as credit, investing, banking, insurance and government regulatory programs.
Course titles: Econ, Econ E, Econ M, Econ CC, Econ SS

AP Economics
Grade: 12 Social Studies credit
Fee: AP exam fee Year: 1.0 credit
Placement: Completion of World and U.S. History
This course covers the basics of macroeconomics, such as the law of supply and demand, capitalism,
inflation, recession, monetary policy, international trade and unemployment. It also covers
microeconomics, such as credit, investing, banking, insurance and government regulatory programs.
Students in this class can take either the AP Macroeconomics or AP Microeconomics test, or both.

AP Psychology
Grades: 10-12 Elective credit
Fee: AP exam fee; $10 lab fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None
The AP Psychology course is designed to introduce students to the systematic and scientific study of the
behavior and mental processes of human beings and other animals. Students are exposed to the
psychological facts, principles, and phenomena associated with each of the major subfields within
psychology. They also learn about the ethics and methods psychologists use in their science and practice.
This course prepares students for the Advanced Placement exam in Psychology, for which college credit
may be earned.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 25



Key for Course Titles

E Essentials - This class is designed to address the standards of the course while individualizing to meet
student needs. It addresses the essential content in a small group setting.

M Modified Class - This is a general education class that is modified to meet students' individual learning
needs for students that access a modified curriculum.

CC Core Connectors - This is a class that is modified to meet students' individual learning needs in a small
group setting.

SS Special School - This is a specially designed program for students who require a separate location for
delivery of services.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 26



SCIENCE

Bradshaw Mountain offers comprehensive lab-based science courses.
Our offerings range from the study of the earth to AP Physics.

Geoscience
Grade: 9 Lab Science credit
Fee: $5 lab fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None
This course is the conventional entry course in science. It offers an in-depth, process study of the earth and the
universe. It enhances a student’s understanding and appreciation of astronomy, geology, meteorology; as well
as how humans impact and interact with Earth's systems.  Classroom activities include lectures, laboratory
experiences, and individual activities. Course titles: Geoscience, Geoscience E, Geoscience M, Geoscience CC,
Geoscience SS

Pre-AP Geoscience
Grade: 9 Lab Science credit
Fee: $5 lab fee Year: 1.0 credit
Placement: Should maintain a C average
Pre-AP Geoscience covers the same areas as Geoscience, with more depth and at a faster pace. This allows
more time to include additional studies of historical geology and earth resources. This course is rigorous and
requires student self-motivation and self-direction.

Biology
Grades: 10-12 Lab Science credit
Fee: $10 lab fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None

This is a process-oriented course that includes a brief history of biology and technological developments. Areas
of study include the scientific method, an introduction to basic chemistry, cell structure and reproduction, the
nature of membranes, photosynthesis and cellular respiration, genetics, microbiology, botany, and general
ecology. Classroom activities include laboratory and microscope technique, discussion, and lecture. Course
titles: Biology, Biology E, Biology M, Biology CC, Biology SS

Pre-AP Biology
Grades: 9-10 Lab Science credit
Fee: $10 lab fee Year: 1.0 credit
Placement: Should maintain a C average
This is a rigorous course for anyone wishing to enroll in AP Biology. The course will examine such disciplines as
genetics, evolution, ecology, microbiology and biotechnology. Some other major topics include scientific
method, classification, cell structure and function, cell reproduction, DNA, RNA and protein synthesis. Lab use
will accompany the biotechnology, genetics and microbiology sections. This course is rigorous and requires
student self-motivation and self-direction.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 27



AP Biology
Grades: 10-12 Lab Science credit
Fee: AP exam fee; $20 lab fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Biology/Pre-AP Biology and Chemistry/Pre-AP Chemistry
The AP Biology course is a rigorous, second-year biology course designed to be the equivalent of an
introductory college biology course. This course will put a great deal of emphasis on data collection and
interpretation, problem solving and critical thinking. Participation in discussions, cooperative groups and
laboratory investigations is expected.

Chemistry
Grades: 10-12 Lab Science credit
Fee: $10 lab fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Algebra I
Chemistry is the study of the composition and structure of matter. Students are guided to develop an atomic
and molecular interpretation of the properties and behavior of matter. To accomplish these goals, students
write and use chemical equations, work in the laboratory, and use mathematics to determine amounts of
matter involved in reactions. Laboratory safety is taught and reinforced throughout the course. Course titles:
Chemistry, Chemistry E, Chemistry M, Chemistry CC, Chemistry SS

Pre-AP Chemistry
Grades: 10-12 Lab Science credit
Fee: $10 lab fee Year: 1.0 credit
Placement: Should maintain a C average
Pre-AP Chemistry is designed for students who are interested in pursuing a career in engineering, medicine, or
the sciences. Like general chemistry, the course includes the study of the composition and structure of matter,
and the reactions that matter experiences, however the pace is faster and the level of difficulty is greater; it
covers all of the topics of general chemistry, as well as acid-base reactions and thermochemistry. Laboratory
safety is taught and reinforced throughout the course.

AP Chemistry
Grades: 10-12 Lab Science credit
Fee: AP exam fee; $20 lab fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Chemistry/Pre-AP Chemistry and Algebra II
AP Chemistry is a rigorous, second-year chemistry course that is appropriate for the student who has
successfully completed a first-year chemistry course and Algebra 2. The curriculum is aligned to that of a
first-year college chemistry course. Laboratory investigations are an integral part of the AP Chemistry class.
Students will have an opportunity to take the AP exam for college credit near the end of the course in May.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 28



Physics
Grades: 11-12 Lab Science credit
Fee: $10 lab fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Algebra II
Physics is the study of the relationship that exists between matter and energy – including what matter and
energy are, and how they affect each other. A course in physics will provide a student with the necessary
background to pursue a degree in engineering, architecture, the physical sciences, as well as the basic
knowledge required to understand how machines function. Physics includes the fields of acoustics,
electromagnetism, mechanics, modern physics, optics, and thermodynamics. Students will solve the problems
of physics, and will perform experiments to introduce and validate physics theory. Course titles: Physics,
Physics E, Physics M, Physics CC, Physics SS

Pre-AP Physics
Grade: 11-12 Lab Science credit
Fee: $10 lab fee Year: 1.0 credit
Placement: Should maintain a C average
Physics is the study of matter and energy, and the interactions between the two. It includes the fields of
acoustics, electromagnetism, mechanics, modern physics, optics, and thermodynamics. Students will perform
experiments to introduce and validate physics theory.

AP Physics 1
Grades: 11-12 Lab Science credit
Fee: AP exam fee; $20 lab fee Year: 1.0 credit
Placement: Should maintain a C average
AP Physics 1 is algebra-based and equivalent to a first-semester college course in algebra-based physics. The
course covers Newtonian mechanics (including rotational dynamics and angular momentum); work, energy,
and power; and mechanical waves and sound.

AP Physics 2
Grades: 11-12 Lab Science credit
Fee: AP exam fee; $20 lab fee Year: 1.0 credit
Placement: Should maintain a C average
AP Physics 2 is Algebra based and is equivalent to a second-semester college course in algebra-based physics.
The course covers fluid mechanics; thermodynamics; electricity and magnetism; optics; and atomic and
nuclear physics.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 29



Environmental Science
Grades: 11-12 Lab Science credit
Fee: $10 lab fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Biology
Environmental science is an interdisciplinary academic field that integrates physical and biological sciences, to
the study of the environment, and the solution of environmental problems. Environmental science provides an
integrated, quantitative, and interdisciplinary approach to the study of environmental systems. Related areas
of study include environmental studies and environmental engineering. Environmental studies incorporates
more of the social sciences for understanding human relationships, perceptions and policies towards the
environment. Environmental engineering focuses on design and technology for improving environmental
quality. This class may not count as a lab science to colleges/universities outside the state of Arizona.
Course titles: Environmental Science, Environmental Science E, Environmental Science M, Environmental Science
CC, Environmental Science SS

Anatomy & Physiology
Grades 11-12 Science credit
Fee: $20 Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Biology
This is a one-year, content-oriented course that includes the study of medical terminology and anatomy and
physiology of the major human body systems. Its purpose is to prepare the student for all Allied Health
programs, including CNA and Sports Medicine, as well as fulfilling the requirements for a high school lab
science credit. Areas of study include medical terminology, scientific method, homeostatic control
mechanisms, human body structure and function, chemistry of life, cells and tissues, and the organ systems
(integumentary, skeletal, muscular, nervous, endocrine, cardiovascular, lymphatic, respiratory, digestive,
urinary, reproductive).  This class will also utilize laboratory work including microscope and dissection labs.
Course titles: Anatomy and Physiology, Anatomy and Physiology E, Anatomy and Physiology M, Anatomy and
Physiology CC, Anatomy and Physiology SS

Key for Course Titles

E Essentials - This class is designed to address the standards of the course while individualizing to meet
student needs. It addresses the essential content in a small group setting.

M Modified Class - This is a general education class that is modified to meet students' individual learning
needs for students that access a modified curriculum.

CC Core Connectors - This is a class that is modified to meet students' individual learning needs in a small
group setting.

SS Special School - This is a specially designed program for students who require a separate location for
delivery of services.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 30



WORLD LANGUAGES

Bradshaw Mountain High School offers Spanish and French. These courses fulfill
college admission requirements and allow for advanced study.

Students who are planning on attending a four-year year university should keep the following
in mind:

● For regular admission, most universities require two years of study of the same language, and some
require three.

● Some degree plans require further foreign language courses at the college level, and some universities
reward credit for high school coursework if the student can demonstrate proficiency, either by testing or by
performance in a college course.

● The student should keep in mind that the amount of time elapsed between the last course taken in high
school and the first opportunity for testing or coursework at the university could affect his or her
performance, so for some students it may be advisable to take language courses later in high school rather
than sooner.

● Placements tests will determine students’ placement in the correct language level course only. Placement
tests are not a test out procedure.

● Native Spanish and French speakers should strongly consider taking a language other than their native
language.

Spanish 1
Grades: 9-12 Foreign Language/Elective credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None
Spanish 1 students learn to communicate in Spanish through writing and vocabulary acquisition while
speaking, listening and reading. Not intended for native speakers. Course titles: Spanish 1, Spanish 1 E, Spanish
1 M, Spanish 1 CC, Spanish 1 SS

Spanish 2
Grades: 9-12 Foreign Language/Elective credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Spanish 1 with a C or higher
Students study Hispanic culture, geography, and history in the native language. As part of their overall

assessment, students read, write, and demonstrate speaking and listening proficiencies. Course titles: Spanish
2, Spanish 2 E, Spanish 2 M, Spanish 2 CC, Spanish 2 SS

Spanish 101
Grades: 9-12 Foreign Language/Elective credit
Fee: $10/credit 1st Semester: 1.0 credit for each course
Placement: Satisfactory fulfillment of YC credit: 3.0 credits with grade of C or higher
all Yavapai College Dual Enrollment requirements
Dual credit course offered in conjunction with Yavapai College. This course focuses on the fundamentals of
speaking, writing, listening, and reading of Spanish. Includes an introduction to the culture of the
Spanish-speaking world.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 31



Spanish 102
Grades: 9-12 Foreign Language/Elective credit
Fee: $10/credit 2nd Semester: 1.0 credit for each course
Placement: Satisfactory fulfillment of YC credit: 3.0 credits with grade of C or higher
all Yavapai College Dual Enrollment requirements,
including the successful completion of Spanish 1
Dual credit course offered in conjunction with Yavapai College. This course assumes a basic/novice level of
Spanish language acquisition and Latin American cultural norms. This course focuses on the development of
speaking, writing, listening, and reading proficiency in Spanish at the intermediate level. Includes culture of the
Spanish-speaking world.

AP Spanish
Grade: 12 Elective credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Pre-AP Spanish 3 with a “C” or better
Through the study of history, culture, and customs, students develop a greater degree of mastery in basic
Spanish language skills. Reading materials include classical and contemporary literature.

French 1
Grades: 9-12 Foreign Language/Elective credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None
In this course, students will first begin to develop aural and oral skills, then read and write and say familiar
words. commands, phrases, short sentences, and basic questions They will learn to use predictable language in
familiar settings. They will start to develop cultural awareness and the ability to recognize the products,
practices and perspectives of the culture. Course titles: French 1, French 1 E, French 1 M, French 1 CC, French 1
SS

French 2
Grades: 9-12 Foreign Language/Elective credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of high school French 1 with a C or higher
In this course, students will continue to develop aural and oral skills and read and write familiar words,
commands, phrases, short sentences, and basic questions. They will continue to learn predictable language in
familiar settings. They will start to develop cultural awareness and the ability to recognize the products,
practices and perspectives of the culture. Students in this course will be required to complete additional and
more challenging performance assessment tasks for each unit of study. They will also have the constant
reinforcement of the basics learned in French 1: numbers, letters, basic phrases of communication, etc. Course
titles: French 2, French 2 E, French 2 M, French2 CC, French 2 SS

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 32



Key for Course Titles

E Essentials - This class is designed to address the standards of the course while individualizing to meet
student needs. It addresses the essential content in a small group setting.

M Modified Class - This is a general education class that is modified to meet students' individual learning
needs for students that access a modified curriculum.

CC Core Connectors - This is a class that is modified to meet students' individual learning needs in a small
group setting.

SS Special School - This is a specially designed program for students who require a separate location for
delivery of services.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 33



PHYSICAL EDUCATION

Girls P.E.
Grades: 9-12 P.E. credit
Fee: $25 P.E. uniform Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None
Involves the introduction of recreational and lifetime activities, which includes improving one’s knowledge and
skills through daily participation in team sport activities such as: flag football, brisketball, ultimate frisbee,
soccer, handball, basketball, softball and speed ball. In addition, students will be introduced to the basic
principles of physical fitness. These principles will be taught in a way that encourages students to perform and
improve on an individual basis. Their level of fitness will be measured through the use of the Presidential
Physical Fitness Test throughout the course of the year according to the standard for their age.
Recommendation: Students should try to find a proper, comfortable athletic shoe that provides support for the
arch and ankles. This will reduce the risk of injury to the ankles, knees, and heels. Course titles: Girls PE, Girls PE
E, Girls PE M, Girls PE CC, Girls PE SS

Girls Weight Training
Grades: 9-12 P.E./Elective credit
Fee: $25 P.E. uniform Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Girls P.E or approval from coach, administrator and parent. This
course is repeatable.
Students will be introduced to the basic principles of resistance training. This will involve learning the correct
technique, major muscle groups, and a variety of equipment that can be used to train. In addition, students
will learn a variety of resistance training methods to incorporate into their lifestyle. Course titles: Girls Weight
Training, Girls Weight Training E, Girls Weight Training M, Girls Weight Training CC, Girls Weight Training SS

Boys P.E.
Grades: 9-12 P.E. credit
Fee: $25 P.E. uniform Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None
Involves the introduction of recreational and lifetime activities, which includes improving one’s knowledge and
skills through daily participation in team sport activities such as: flag football, brisketball, ultimate frisbee,
handball, basketball, softball and speed ball. In addition, students will be introduced to the basic principles of
physical fitness. These principles will be taught in a way that encourages students to perform and improve on
an individual basis. Their level of fitness will be measured through the use of the Presidential Physical Fitness
Test throughout the course of the year according to the standard for their age. Recommendation: Students
should try to find a proper, comfortable athletic shoe that provides support for the arch and ankles. This will
reduce the risk of injury to the ankles, knees, and heels. Course titles: Boys PE, Boys PE E, Boys PE M, Boys PE
CC, Boys PE SS

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 34



Boys Weight Training
Grades: 9-12 P.E./Elective credit
Fee: $25 P.E. uniform Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Boys P.E or approval from coach, administrator and parent. This
course is repeatable.
Students will be introduced to the basic principles of resistance training. This will involve learning the correct
technique, major muscle groups, and a variety of equipment that can be used to train. In addition, students
will learn a variety of resistance training methods to incorporate into their lifestyle. Course titles: Boys Weight
Training, Boys Weight Training E, Boys Weight Training M, Boys Weight Training CC, Boys Weight Training SS

Athletic Physical Education
Grades: 9-12 P.E./Elective credit
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit
Prerequisite: Varsity head coach, administrative, and parental approval required. This course is repeatable.
Athletic P.E. is designed for the varsity athlete who wants to improve their sport specific skills during the
season, and participate in an extensive training program during the off-season. Freshman may participate in
Athletic PE after they have successfully made a varsity team and with coach approval.

Advanced PE
Grades: 10-12 P.E. credit
Fee: $25 P.E. uniform Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Freshman PE
Involves recreational and lifetime activities, which includes improving one’s knowledge and skills through daily
participation in team sport activities such as: flag football, brisketball, ultimate frisbee, soccer, handball,
basketball, softball and speed ball. In addition, students will be introduced to the basic principles of physical
fitness. Areas of emphasis will be: safety, and proper warm-up, and lifting.  Physical fitness and proper
nutrition is an integral part of this class.

Adaptive PE
Grades: 9-12 Physical Education credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Placement determined by a student's Individual Education Program (IEP).
Students experience an alternative to general P.E. due to challenges related to disability. Activities are
structured around the needs of the student.

Key for Course Titles

E Essentials - This class is designed to address the standards of the course while individualizing to meet
student needs. It addresses the essential content in a small group setting.

M Modified Class - This is a general education class that is modified to meet students' individual learning
needs for students that access a modified curriculum.

CC Core Connectors - This is a class that is modified to meet students' individual learning needs in a small
group setting.

SS Special School - This is a specially designed program for students who require a separate location for
delivery of services.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 35



FINE & PERFORMING ARTS

ART

Intro to Art and Design
Grade: 9-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: $30 Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None
Students will explore the elements and principles of art and design through a variety of mediums. Students will
solve visual problems. Art history and appreciation are included. Course titles: Art, Art M

Drawing & Painting
Grade: 10-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: $40 Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Intro to Art & Design
This course teaches advanced painting and drawing techniques. Experimentation is encouraged, with an
emphasis on watercolor and acrylic painting. First semester is an exploration of media and technique and the
second semester focuses on the development of a portfolio to assist in admittance to a higher art education
and/or art related occupations. Course titles: Drawing and Painting, Drawing and Painting M

Advanced Drawing & Painting
Grade: 11-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: $50 Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Drawing & Painting or by instructor approval
This is for serious art students who have successfully taken Drawing & Painting and want to expand their
knowledge of various techniques. Art History is explored by experimenting with different types of art styles
from classical to modern.

Ceramic and 3-D Sculpture
Grade: 10-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: $40 Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Intro to Art and Design
Students will explore various 3-D designs by solving visual problems. Basic ceramic arts are discovered through
handbuilding and use of a potter's wheel. A variety of other sculptural materials will be explored in addition to
clay. Glazing and firing procedures are examined. Art movements and history are included. Course titles:
Ceramic and 3-D Sculpture, Ceramic and 3-D Sculpture M

Advanced Ceramic and 3-D Sculpture
Grade: 11-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: $50 Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Passed Ceramic and Sculpture with a least a C grade
This course is a further investigation into various methods of clay forming (hand-building and wheel throwing)
and other sculpture methods. A wide variety of materials will be explored in addition to clay. More advanced
techniques of construction, glazing, and firing are explored. Sculptures are made using more advanced
techniques and varied materials.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 36



AP Studio Art/Drawing & Painting or 3-D Design
Grade: 11-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: $20 course fee and $30 portfolio fee Year: 1.0 credit
for a total of $50; AP exam fee
Prerequisite: 70% C or higher in previous art course and instructor approval, with portfolio
This course is designed for students who are highly motivated in the study, experimentation and creation of
art. The exam incorporates submission of a portfolio of student artwork to the AP College Board. This requires
the production of a large volume of consistently high quality work. Course may be repeated for credit if a
student develops a new portfolio and different portfolio. Open to students that will engage in Studio Art
courses in a post- secondary learning institute.

INSTRUMENTAL MUSIC

Marching Band
Grades: 9-12 Fine Art credit; Semester 1: 0.5 credit OR
Fees: $100 (includes Concert Band/Percussion PE credit; Semester 1: 0.25 PE/0.25 Fine Arts
fee for the year) (PE credit ONLY if taken all four years.)
Shoes: $27 (required of all freshmen and as needed for grades 10-12)
School-owned instruments:  $50 for the year
Prerequisite: Participation in middle/high school band or director approval.
Students in this course must also be enrolled in Concert Band, Drumline/Percussion, or Color Guard.
This first-semester course is offered to wind players, percussionists and color guard members with previous
band experience or director’s approval. It is designed to further the student’s education in instrumental music,
provide school spirit and entertainment at sporting events, and show community involvement through
participation in local parades and other events. Students interested in participating in the marching band must
attend band camp two weeks before school begins. They must also understand that being a member of the
band is a considerable time commitment, and requires dedication and perseverance from both the student
and parents. All performances and practices are required as a part of the student’s grade. There may also be
additional expenses required of students for instrument accessories, food, lodging and other travel expenses
throughout the semester. Course titles: Marching Band

Concert Band
Grades: 9-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: Included in Marching Band fee Semester 1 and 2: 0.5 credit each semester
Prerequisite: Participation in middle/high school band or director approval.
This second semester elective course is open to all woodwind and brass players with previous band experience
or director’s approval. It is designed to further the student’s education in instrumental music as well as provide
opportunities to perform locally. The content of the course is devoted to Regional Band audition preparation,
concert festival preparation, two concerts, and a performance at graduation. All rehearsals and performances
are required as a part of the student’s grade. Course titles: Concert Band, Concert Band M

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 37



Drumline/Percussion
Grades: 9-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: Included in Marching Band fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Previous participation in middle/high school band or director approval. Audition required for
Drumline placement (late April or early May). Students in this course must be enrolled in Marching Band.
This elective course is open to percussionists with prior experience or director’s approval. It is designed to
further the students’ music education by providing instruction in this specialized area of the band. First
semester is devoted primarily to drumline and front ensemble instruction as it relates to the BMHS marching
band, preparation for the December concert, and regional audition preparation. Second semester is devoted
primarily to percussion ensemble work, where students will have the opportunity to improve their skills on a
wide range of percussion instruments, as well as regional band audition preparation, concert festival
preparation, two concerts, and a performance at graduation. All rehearsals and performances are required as
part of a student’s grade. Please refer to the description for marching band as it pertains to this class (i.e.
additional expenses, rehearsals, and band camp). Course titles: Drumline/Percussion, Drumline/Percussion M

Color Guard/Winter Guard
Grades: 9-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: $50/course Semester: 0.5 credit/course
Prerequisite: Audition or teacher approval and concurrent enrollment in Marching Band
This semester elective course is open to all auditioned students and is designed to further students’ music
education through the medium of dance, choreography and movement. Students will learn how to use flags,
rifles and other equipment in a routine designed to visually enhance the marching show. All rehearsals and
performances are required as a part of the student’s grade. Please refer to the description for marching band
as it pertains to this class (i.e. additional expenses, rehearsals and band camp). Course titles: Color
Guard/Winter Guard, Color Guard/Winter Guard M

Jazz Ensemble
Grades: 9-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: $50 Year: 1.0 credit
$50 school instrument usage fee (if applicable)
Prerequisite: Audition and director approval only
This course is open to advanced wind and percussion players who audition or are placed by the director. The
course is designed to expose students to intermediate and advanced jazz music and further students’ music
education by means of this difficult and dynamic genre. The content of the course is devoted to preparation for
four quarterly concerts, jazz festival preparation, and other community performances as opportunities arise.
As the course meets outside of the normal school day, students will need to understand the commitment this
elite ensemble requires, and all rehearsals and performances are required as a part of the student’s grade.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 38



String Orchestra
Grades: 9-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: $50 Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None (Prior musical experience strongly suggested)
This course provides a performance medium for beginning to advanced string instrumentalists. No prior
experience is required but the class moves quickly so beginning students will need to be very motivated , and
prior experience is suggested. The content of the course is devoted to preparation for four quarterly concerts,
Regional orchestra audition preparation, orchestra festival preparation, and other community performances as
opportunities arise. The school does own a few instruments, but they are distributed on a first-come/
first-serve basis. Violinists must provide their own instrument. All rehearsals and performances are required as
a part of the student’s grade. Course titles: String Orchestra, String Orchestra M

Guitar 1
Grades: 9-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: $25 course fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None
This course is open to all high school students wanting to learn how to play the guitar. There is classroom
instruction in music theory, note reading, basic chords and chord progression. Students have the opportunity
to learn rock, folk, classical, and Blues guitar. Students are required to provide an acoustic guitar.

Guitar 2
Grades: 10-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: $25 course fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Guitar Level One with a grade of C or higher or pass off on basic skills
test given by instructor.
This course is designed to improve the basic skills learned in level one and extend your abilities to read music;
play finger-style, flatpick, and classical; play as a member of an ensemble and individually; and learn/apply
music theory concepts as they relate to the guitar. Students will have the opportunity to play rock, folk,
classical, and Blues guitar. There will also be extended opportunities for ensemble performances during the
year. Students are required to provide their own acoustic guitar.

Guitar 3
Grades: 10-12 Fine Art credit
Fee:  $25 course fee                                                                      Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite:  Successful completion of Guitar Level Two with a grade of C or higher or pass off on basic skills
test given by instructor.
This course is designed to further develop the intermediate skills learned in level two and extend your abilities
to read music; play finger-style, flatpick, jazz and classical; play as a member of an ensemble and individually;
and learn/apply advanced music theory concepts as they relate to the guitar including, but not limited to scale
modes, improvisation, and composition.  Students will have the opportunity to play rock, folk, classical, jazz,
and blues guitar.  There will also be extended opportunities for ensemble performances during the year.
Students are required to provide their own acoustic guitar.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 39



VOCAL MUSIC

Note on fees for participation in choirs:
Each year, part of the fees collected go toward paying for cleaning of tuxedos and gowns. Participation fees
vary by choir and help to purchase new performance attire, entrance fees, and expenses involving travel to
festivals and other performances, and towards paying for instrumental accompaniments. All performances
are mandatory. Grades are based on performances and personal commitment to the group demonstrated by
participation in each daily rehearsal, attitude, cooperation, and effort, in addition to personal vocal
development and some written work. Special uniform dress is required for performances. NOTE: Chorus
students who wish to go to extracurricular activities may pay a range in fees throughout the year. Overnight
trips may require payment for hotel and food.

Concert Choir
Grades: 9-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: $30 Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None
The Concert Choir is a mixed ensemble of male and female singers and is open to those students who desire to
improve their vocal abilities and prepare for possible entrance into the advanced choirs. Daily rehearsals will
focus on musicianship skills, vocal health and development, intermediate level theory and sight reading, and
other choral music concepts and curriculum. The repertoire will include SAB literature and possible SATB
literature depending on the personnel in the choir. This ensemble will be scheduled for at least four public
concerts per year and will have opportunities for festivals and travel. An audition with the instructor or teacher
recommendation is required for entrance into this choral group. Course titles: Concert Choir, Concert Choir M

Women’s Ensemble
Grades: 10-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: $40 Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Approval by audition. Advanced degree of proficiency in vocal technique and music theory is
preferred. Must have previous musical experience.
This course is an outlet for students who are prepared for a more intense commitment to choir and are ready
to pursue more difficult and more acapella choral literature. This smaller female ensemble requires daily
rehearsal, which includes intensive study of advanced SSA/SSAA repertoire in preparation for public
performances, which are mandatory and in-depth study of music reading and sight-singing. Grades are based
on performances and personal commitment to the group demonstrated by rehearsal ethic, attitude,
cooperation, and effort, in addition to personal vocal development and some written work. Special uniform
dress is required for performances. This group will travel to festivals, work with guest conductors, and may be
called upon to perform for community events.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 40



Chamber Singers
Grades: 10-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: $40 Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Approval by audition. Advanced degree of proficiency in vocal technique and music theory is
preferred. Must have some previous musical experience.
Daily rehearsals will include intensive study of advanced SATB repertoire with emphasis in Renaissance,
Baroque, and Contemporary choral literature in preparation for public performance. In-depth study of music
theory principles and sight-singing are also emphasized. Grades are based on performances and personal
commitment to the group demonstrated by rehearsal ethic, attitude, cooperation, and effort, in addition to
personal vocal development and some written work. This group will travel to festivals, work with guest
conductors, and may be called upon to perform for community events. All performances and rehearsals are
mandatory.

THEATER

Introduction to Theatre
Grades: 9-12 Fine Art/CTE credit
Fee: $15 supply fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None
Emphasis is placed on the history of drama, classic plays, basic stage terminology, and building a foundation of
performance techniques. Students are expected to perform and complete projects within the classroom
context including individual and group performances. Participation in productions outside of class is NOT
required, although opportunities are available for those that are interested. Course titles: Introduction to
Theatre, Introduction to Theatre M

Intermediate Theatre
Grades: 10-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: $15 script and supply fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Introduction to
Theater and Film with a C average and audition with director
Students continue building on the basics of all aspects of theater and performance learned in the introduction
class, with particular emphasis on characterization and preparing for public performances. Students are
required to participate in the class production.

Advanced Theatre
Grades: 11-12 Fine Art credit
Fee: $15 script and supply fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Intermediate Drama and audition with director
The advanced course is designed to fine-tune a student's performance skills, and focuses on public
performance. Other elements of theatrical production will be taught, including playwriting, directing,
auditioning and improvisational skills. Students are required to participate in several competitions throughout
the year including the Arizona Thespian Conference and the Northern Arizona Festival of Theater. Other events
and productions are required which include, but not limited to, Young Playwrights Festival, Children’s Theatre,
Senior Directed One-Acts, Improv Olympics, and Scene Night. Additional fees for competitions and events may
be charged and mandatory events often include nights and weekends. Off-campus field trips to watch
community productions or other theatrical events will be available and are not mandatory.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 41



Key for Course Titles

E Essentials - This class is designed to address the standards of the course while individualizing to meet
student needs. It addresses the essential content in a small group setting.

M Modified Class - This is a general education class that is modified to meet students' individual learning
needs for students that access a modified curriculum.

CC Core Connectors - This is a class that is modified to meet students' individual learning needs in a small
group setting.

SS Special School - This is a specially designed program for students who require a separate location for
delivery of services.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 42



CAREER & TECHNICAL EDUCATION

Annual Nondiscrimination Notification

Humboldt Unified School District does not discriminate on the basis of sex, race, color, national origin, age, or
disability in its program or activities and provides equal access to the Boy Scouts and other designated youth
groups. Humboldt Unified School District Career and Technical Education department does not discriminate in
enrollment or access to any of the programs available, such as JROTC, Film & TV/Digital Communication
Nursing, Sports Med, Stagecraft, Network Security, Business Management, Software and Application Design &
MICTED courses offered at Yavapai College.

The lack of English language skills shall not be a barrier to admission or participation in the district’s activities
and programs. Humboldt Unified School District also does not discriminate in its hiring or employment
practices. This notice is provided as required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975
and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  The following people have been designated to handle
inquiries regarding the nondiscrimination policies:

Athletic Director
Clairinda Weatherwax
6000 E. Long Look Dr.
Prescott Valley, AZ 86314
(928) 759-4100
clairinda.weatherwax@humboldtunified.com

Principal
Brett Dahl
6000 E. Long Look Dr.
Prescott Valley, AZ 86314
(928) 759-4000
brett.dahl@humboldtunified.com

El Distrito Unificado de las Escuelas Humboldt no discrimina en ninguna forma en lo que se refiere a lo
relacionado con el sexo, la raza, el color de la piel, la nacionalidad, la edad o incapacidad física en la
participación en sus programas y/o actividades y también provee acceso igual a los niños Scouts y a los otros
grupos que son designados para gente joven. El Departamento de Educación Técnica y de Carreras
Universitarias del Distrito Unificado de Escuelas Humboldt no discrimina la inscripción o el acceso a cualquier
programa disponible tales como: Fotografía digital, de películas y televisión, de enfermería, de medicina de
deportes, de teatro técnico, de conexión de redes, de mercadotecnia, y en MICTED*. La falta de un buen
conocimiento del idioma de inglés no es una barrera para la admisión o la participación en las actividades y en
los programas del Distrito. El Distrito tampoco discrimina en lo relacionado con contratos de trabajo o de
empleos. Las siguientes son las personas que han sido designadas y encargadas para hacer la investigación
necesaria con respecto a las disciplinas que existen en contra de cualquier clase de discriminación.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 43



Career Pathways

Bradshaw Mountain High School provides comprehensive “Career and Technology Education Programs”
designed to prepare all students for the future. The programs not only offer students an opportunity to see
relevance in their school courses, but also:
● Provide integration of critical skills identified by business and industry, which include: Thinking Skills,

Applied Academic Skills, Life Management Skills, Technology Skills and other career-related skills valued by
employers.

● Offer a planned sequence of career development experiences to assist students in making career and
advanced educational decisions. The curriculum is competency-based and includes skills necessary for
employment in the program areas.

● Teach by using technology.
● Present students with the opportunity to be involved in work-based learning activities in which students

can use and improve their career-related skills.
● Allow early release for cooperative classes (co-op) designed for students to have on-the-job training in

conjunction with classroom instruction.

Yavapai County

Bradshaw Mountain also offers students an opportunity to enroll in articulated Career and Technical Programs.
Students can earn college credits by taking articulated courses (marked with the symbol *). Students must
meet the following requirements:
● Earn at least a “B” in each articulated course.
● Enroll at Yavapai College within two years after high school graduation.
● Apply for Tech Prep status at Yavapai College at the time of admission to the college.
● Successfully complete a minimum of six credit hours at Yavapai College in required credits for the

articulated program.

NURSING SERVICES

The Nursing Assistant program at BMHS prepares students to perform technical services involved with
planning, organizing, and directing processes related to the provision of nursing assisting services. An
integrated approach to teaching and learning is provided as students develop interpersonal relations, career
development skills and technical knowledge and skills associated with nursing assisting and the pathway
into other health careers. Students will have the opportunity to participate in teams, solve problems, think
critically and implement effective solutions. This program is designed and delivered as a coherent sequence
of experiences using technical instruction, academic foundations, experiential learning and a supervised
occupational experience. Upon successful course completion, students are eligible for application to the AZ
State Board of Nursing for nursing assistant certification and employment. Five (5) college credit hours are
possible at completion of the CNA program with a 75% or higher through Dual Enrollment at Yavapai
College. Career and Technical Student Organization (HOSA) standards will be an integral part of this
program.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 44



Certified Nursing Assistant - Fundamentals
Grades: 12 CTE credit
Fee: $30 Semester: 1.25 credit (2-period block)
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Anatomy and Physiology with a C or higher in both semesters;
Application to program; Instructor interview/approval; Current Health Care Provider (professional) CPR
Certification; Current First Aid certification
CNA Fundamentals prepares students to apply academic, employability and technical knowledge and skills
related to common industry standards and practices of nursing assisting within the nursing profession.
Students will focus on fundamental knowledge and skills essential to the development of personal,
professional, leadership and career success qualities of a patient care provider. This class is a two-period
block.

CNA Fundamentals SKILLS LAB provides students the opportunity to apply CNA Fundamental knowledge from
the classroom setting into the hands-on skill portion of the program. All students must be in good health with
documented physical ability to lift 50 pounds safely. Students must also be able to see and hear well in order
to master the skills required to provide safe, quality care as a CNA. Reasonable accommodations for persons
with documented (IEP/504) disabilities will be made. Skills lab is a MANDATORY after-school class, one day a
week per student for three and one half (3 ½) hours. The student’s day will be assigned at the beginning of the
program in August. This class is a graded class and is required for the student to advance into the clinical
portion of the program.

The District does not provide health insurance for student participation in the CNA program. Students
participate at their own risk. Parents/guardians are encouraged to purchase supplemental insurance and/or

ensure that their private health insurance is adequate.

Certified Nursing Assistant - Advanced Applications
Grades: 12 CTE credit
Fee: $114 for CNA State Board Exam Semester: 1.25 credit (2-period block)
at completion of program (optional)
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Certified Nursing Assistant – Fundamentals with a grade of 75% or
higher; Successful completion of Certified Nursing Assistant – Fundamentals SKILLS LAB with a grade of 75%
or higher)
CNA Advanced Applications is a continuation of the CNA Fundamentals class and prepares students to apply
advanced academic and technical knowledge and skills related to nursing assisting in a variety of settings
within the nursing profession. This course builds on previously learned program content and focuses on
essential nursing assistant knowledge, skills and work- based learning to develop students as safe and
competent patient care providers. This class is a two-period block.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 45



CNA Advanced Applications CLINICAL allows the student to demonstrate their knowledge and skill level by
performing safe basic nursing care and is required by the Arizona State Board of Nursing. All students must
be in good health with documented physical ability to lift 50 pounds safely. Students must also be able to
see and hear well in order to master the skills required to provide safe, quality care as a CNA. Reasonable
accommodations for persons with documented (IEP/504) disabilities will be made. Clinical is a MANDATORY
after school class, one day a week (per student), for four and one half (4 1/2) hours. The student’s day will
be assigned at the beginning of the program in August. This class is held off-site within the Tri-City Area
(specific locations TBD); transportation is not provided. This class is Pass/Fail and is required for the student
to be eligible for application to the Arizona State Board of Nursing for nursing assistant certification and
employment. Please note, students will also be required to complete after school skills lab hours in addition
to clinical hours during 2nd semester.

*Upon completion of the CTE Program and passing of the State Assessment, the student shall receive
an MICTED cord, a certificate and a copy of their transcript, which document their

skill attainment and may be used for prospective employers.

BUSINESS

Business I
Grades: 10-12 CTE credit
Fee: $10/college credit Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None YC credit: 6.0 credits with grade of C or higher

or teacher recommendation.
This is a dual enrollment course with Yavapai College. Students earn six (6) college credits. Students must
maintain a grade of “C” or better to remain in the program. During Semester 1, students will learn the theory
of communication in detail, writing for the workplace and develop their skills for delivering professional oral
presentations in their workplace. During Semester 2, students will gain a greater understanding of universal
management philosophies. Additionally, the student will begin to focus on phases of managerial decision
making; planning, organizing, directing, and controlling. Equivalent Yavapai College courses are MGT-120:
Supervision Techniques and MGT-223: Human Resources Management.

Business II
Grades: 11-12 CTE credit
Fee: $10/college credit Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Business I YC credit: 6.0 credits with grade of C or

higher or teacher recommendation.
This is a dual enrollment course with Yavapai College. Students earn six (6) college credits. Students must
maintain a grade of “C” or better to remain in the program. Students will learn about the different types of
supervisory techniques and how to develop those skills. They will also learn how to be effective listeners and
problem solvers with regard to their human resources management processes, conflict resolution, change
management and team-building. Semester 2 will be based on human resources theory and practice. Students
will learn about employee relations, recruitment processes and placement. Students will also learn about the
development and evaluation of employees and gain a greater understanding of compensation and benefits.
Equivalent Yavapai College courses are MGT-120: Supervision Techniques and MGT-223: Human Resources
Management.

*On completion of the CTE Program and passing of the state assessment, the student shall receive a MICTED
cord, a certificate and a copy of their transcript, which document their skill attainment and may be used for
prospective employers.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 46



DIGITAL COMMUNICATION

Digital Media 1- Photography, Videography and Graphic Design
Grade 10-12 CTE credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None
Students in this course learn the basic fundamentals of digital photography, videography and graphic design.
Students use Adobe based computer application systems such as Photoshop and Premiere Pro to create photo
video and design projects, which include stop-motion animation, short videos and public service
announcements. Students develop their writing and editing skills while expanding their understanding of the
media industry and available career options.

Digital Media 1 - Fundamentals of Photography and Videography - M (Modified class)
Grade 10-12 Elective Credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Per IEP Team
Students in this course will learn the basic fundamentals of photography, videography and graphic design, with
modifications as appropriate for the student’s needs.

Digital Media 2A - Production Studio (Bradshaw Mountain Morning News)
Grade: 11-12 CTE credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Digital Media 1 with a C or better.
Students continue their professional development by creating and broadcasting daily news announcements for
the school campus. Students produce, record and edit digital video commercials and promotional packages of
school events, commercials and news packages. Students develop their leadership abilities through
participation in the state-recognized Career and Technical Student Organization, FBLA. Upon completion of the
class, students can take the Adobe Premiere Pro Certification exam for professional employment and
education beyond high school.

*On completion of the CTE Program and passing of the State Assessment, the student shall receive a CTED
cord, a certificate and a copy of their transcript, which document their skill attainment and may be used for
prospective employers.

Digital Media 2B - Yearbook
Grade: 11-12 CTE credit
Fee: Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Digital Media 1
Students continue advancing their photography skills and knowledge by continuation of the yearbook
development and publication. Students completing this program will be prepared to enter the workforce
and/or post-secondary education, where they will be able to apply the skills necessary to be in Digital
Photography while also having a strong portfolio to support their knowledge and skill. Students learn
leadership skills and develop their leadership abilities through participation in the state-recognized Career and
Technical Student Organization, FBLA.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 47



Multimedia Independent Study
Grades: 11-12 CTE credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Digital Media 2 with a grade of C or better.
Students serve as mentors to the Digital Media 2 students, as they demonstrate their mastery of the technical
skills required by the professional industry by creating a digital portfolio.  An integrated approach to teaching
and learning is recommended as students develop interpersonal relations, career development skills,
workplace employability skills and technical knowledge and skills.

SPORTS MEDICINE AND REHAB SERVICES

Sports Medicine I
Grade: 11-12 CTE credit
Fee: $40 (HOSA) Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite:  Anatomy and Physiology
An advanced lecture-laboratory course designed for students interested in athletic training, medicine, physical
therapy, exercise science and/or other related paramedical fields. Students will examine the causes,
prevention, evaluation, management, and rehabilitation of various sport related conditions. Topics regarding
research, kinesiology, nutrition, pharmacology, exercise science and implementation of sports medicine
programs will also be investigated. Enrolled students will be required to work as student athletic trainers.
Students will be required to work after school, weekends and will be supervised by the school’s athletic trainer.

Sports Medicine I - Fundamentals of Athletic Training - M (Modified class)
Grade 11-12 Elective Credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Per IEP Team
Students in this course learn the basic fundamentals of athletic training and exercise science, with
modifications as appropriate for the student’s needs.

Sports Medicine II
Grade: 11-12 CTE credit
Fee: $40 (HOSA) Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite:  Sports Med I
This course offers instruction and practical application in the skills of a personal trainer as well as the
techniques necessary for the prevention and care of athletic injuries. Field experience will be required as
students work with athletes as they learn the role and function of athletic training and personal training.
Students will be required to work after school, weekends and will be supervised by the school’s athletic trainer.

*On completion of the CTE Program and passing of the State Assessment, the student shall receive a MICTED
cord, a certificate and a copy of their transcript, which document their skill attainment and may be used for
prospective employers.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 48



COMPUTER SECURITY

Intro to Tech
Grades: 10-12 CTE credit
Fee: $10/college credit Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None YC credit: 8.0 credits with grade of C or higher
This is a dual enrollment course with Yavapai College. Students earn seven (8) college credits. Must maintain a
grade of “C” or better to remain in the program.

Students learn the skills necessary to install, manage, and support a computer network. With hands-on
exercises, students learn to install network cables and configure both wired and wireless networks. Topics
include network cabling, security, network protocols, and operating systems.  In the second semester, students
will learn how to install, manage and support personal computers and network servers. Hands- on activities
provide students with the skills to build, upgrade, and repair personal computers and install and configure
desktop and server operating systems. Equivalent college courses are:

CNT-101: Networking & Cyber Security Fundamentals (Semester 1)
Essential skills practiced in the networking and cybersecurity professions. Network device operation and
configuration, network protocols, network security, and troubleshooting are key topics of discussion with
hands-on activities. The latest networking standards and technologies are covered.

CNT-110: A+ Computer Technician Certification (Semester 2)
Install, configure, support, and troubleshoot personal computers. Emphasis on personal computer hardware
and software, operating systems, networking, mobile devices, and security. Preparation for the Comp TIA A+
Certification exam.

Networking  Technician
Grades: 10-12 CTE credit
Fee: $10/college credit Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite/Corequisite: CNT101 YC credit: 7.0 credits with grade of C or higher
This is a dual enrollment course with Yavapai College. Students earn seven (7) college credits. Must maintain a
grade of “C” or better to remain in the program.

Students become “administrators” of the classroom network while learning the concepts and procedures
involved with computer and network management. Introduction to Cisco programming and myriad operating
systems. Students will learn advanced network management skills. With hands-on exercises, students learn to
configure Cisco routers and switches and work with a wide variety of computer operating systems. Topics
include network design, security, network access controls, and operating systems. Equivalent college courses
are:

CNT-118: Operating System Fundamentals (Semester 1)
An introduction to operating system concepts and functions. Topics include memory management, processes
and threads, file systems, networking, virtualization, and operating system security.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 49



CNT-140: Cisco Routing & Switching I (Semester 2)
Study of computer networking standards and operation. Includes network topologies, network protocols and
communications, network addressing, network device configuration, network design, and network security.
First of three courses to prepare students to pass the Cisco Certified Network Associate (CCNA) certification
examination.

Student will Earn: Computer Networking Technician Certificate
This certificate is designed to provide students with the skills necessary to install, troubleshoot and support
computers and servers in a small to medium-sized computer network. Students are prepared for two industry
certifications: CompTIA A+ Certified IT Technician and CompTIA Network+. Successful students will have the
skills required to gain employment in entry-level positions in the information technology field.

Certificate Program Requirements to walk in the YC graduation ceremony
CNT 101 Networking & Cyber Security Fundamentals
CNT 110 A+ Computer Technician Certification
CNT 118 Operating System Fundamentals
CNT 140 Cisco Routing & Switching I

Cybersecurity
Grades: 10-12 CTE credit
Fee: $10/college credit Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite/Corequisite: CNT101                                                   YC credit: 6.0 credits with grade of C or higher
This is a dual enrollment course with Yavapai College. Students earn seven (6) college credits. Must maintain a
grade of “C” or better to remain in the program.

Students learn to install, support, secure, and troubleshoot network devices such as routers, switches, and
servers. In addition, students learn how to configure virtual private networks, firewalls, and intrusion
prevention systems. Equivalent college courses are:

CNT 105 - Cybersecurity Principles (Semester 1)
Foundation knowledge and essential skills in all security domains in the cyber world – information security,
systems security, network security, mobile security, physical security, ethics and laws, related technologies,
defense and mitigation techniques used in protecting businesses.

CNT 135 - Security+: Implementing and Maintaining Network Security (Semester 2)
Network security concepts, communication security, network infrastructure security, basics
of cryptography and operational/organizational security. Emphasis on network authentication and
authorization, securing network devices and services, virus remedies, preventing network attacks, and securing
remote access. Prepares students for the Comp/TIA Security+ certification.

Student will Earn: Cybersecurity Technician Certificate
This certificate is designed to provide students with the skills required to install, configure, and secure a small
to medium-sized network. Emphasis is on cybersecurity technologies and implementation. Students are
prepared for the CompTIA Security+ certification. Successful students will have the skills required to gain
employment in entry-level positions in the information technology field specializing in cybersecurity.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 50



Certificate Program Requirements to walk in the YC graduation ceremony
CNT 101 Networking & Cyber Security Fundamentals
CNT 105 Cybersecurity Principles
CNT 140 Cisco Routing & Switching I
CNT 135 Security+: Implementing and Maintaining Network Security

COMPUTERS

Computer Science
Grades:  9 Elective credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None
This course is designed to provide students with an in-depth knowledge of computer systems and exposes
students to relevant applications. The course will provide a familiarization with the Microsoft Suite including
Microsoft Word, Excel, Publisher, and PowerPoint. The course will cover an introduction to the concept of
software development, data analysis, and ethical impacts of computing technology on business practices.  The
class will also cover employability skills, problem solving, and organization skills. Course titles: Computer
Science, Computer Science M

Software and App Design 1
Grade: 10-11 Elective credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Computer Science
This course focuses on applying problem-solving and critical thinking involved in the process of software
development. The course introduces students to coding languages including but not limited to HTML, CSS,
JavaScript, and Python. Curriculum from Code.org will be a core aspect of the program. This course explores
program coding, analysis, and debugging. Current issues related to privacy and ethical issues in computer
security will be addressed in this course. All students who take Software and App Design 1 are encouraged to
complete the program and take Software and App Design 2.

*On completion of the CTE program and passing of the state assessment, the student shall receive an MICTED
cord, a certificate, and a copy of their transcript which document their skill attainment and may be used for
prospective employers.

Software and App Design 2
Grade: 10-11 Elective credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Software Development 1
This course elaborates on the concepts covered in Software and App Design 1 with a greater focus on applying
problem-solving and critical thinking involved in the process of software development.  The course introduces
students to coding languages including but not limited to, HTML, CSS, JavaScript, and Python. Curriculum from
Code.org will be a core aspect of the program. This course expands program coding, analysis, and debugging.
Current issues related to privacy and ethical issues in computer security will be addressed in this course.

*On completion of the CTE Program and passing of the State Assessment, the student shall receive an MICTED
Cord, a certificate, and a copy of their transcript which document their skill attainment and may be used for
prospective employers.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 51



Leadership, Education, and Training (LET) - JROTC

JROTC (Junior Reserve Officer Training Corps) has four levels of Leadership, Education, and Training (LET).
These classes are designed to teach the values of citizenship, leadership, service to the community, personal
responsibility, and give a sense of accomplishment, while instilling self-esteem, teamwork, and self-discipline.
The program’s focus is reflected in its mission statement, “To Motivate Young People to be Better Citizens.”
JROTC’s performance-based curriculum requires that cadets master competencies, perform skills, apply
knowledge, and model or exhibit behaviors representing the desired attitudes. A custom-fitted uniform is
worn once a week on the designated uniform day. There is no obligation to join the armed forces; however,
satisfactory completion of two years can lead to advanced rank in the Armed Forces. College ROTC
scholarships are available for outstanding students meeting college entrance requirements.

*Students successfully completing a year of JROTC Physical Training (PT) requirements receive (.25) credits for
Physical Education (PE).  Bradshaw Mountain High School requires 1.0 credit of PE for graduation.

LET 1
Grade: 9-12 CTE/Elective credit
Fee: $25 Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None
This course will give an overview of the JROTC structure and the LET levels. It will focus on maximizing
student’s potential for success in high school and life through learning study skills and self-management.
Students will develop basic leadership, follower, and citizenship skills while beginning to learn effective ways to
build relationships with peers and co-workers. Students will practice conflict resolution and engage in
community/service learning.

LET 2
Grade: 10-12 CTE/Elective credit
Fee: $25 Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Grades of “C” or above in LET 1
This course continues developing the skills learned in LET 1. In addition, students learn to promote wellness
through nutrition, physical fitness, and substance abuse prevention. Students will apply physical and political
geography to build global awareness and correlate the rights and responsibilities of citizenship to the purposes
of the US government.

LET 3
Grade: 11-12 CTE/Elective credit
Fee: $25 Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Grades of “C” or above in LET 2
This course continues developing the skills learned in LET 1 and 2. In addition, we relate events in US history to
choices and responsibilities Americans have today. Students will learn organizational structure and how
organizations work. Leadership skills expand into decision making, problem solving, team building, and
planning skills needed for complex events.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 52



LET 4
Grade: 12 CTE/Elective credit
Fee: $25 Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Grades of “C” or above in LET 3
This course continues developing the skills learned as LET 1, 2, and 3. In addition, students learn teaching skills
and the National Endowment for Financial Education Planning Program (NEFE). Students will learn advanced
leadership principles of power bases and influence, styles of leadership, management skills, communication,
and motivation. They will learn the role of the military in defending and maintaining peace for a democratic
society.

STAGECRAFT

Stagecraft 1
Grades: 9-12 CTE/Fine Art credit
Fee: $15 course material fee Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: None
This course will teach the basics of theater production including all aspects of design and implementation
including lighting, sound, costuming, makeup, sets, management, props, and rigging. Students will have the
opportunity to participate in school theatrical productions to further enhance their understanding of concepts
learned in class.

Stagecraft I - Fundamentals of Theater Production - M (Modified class)
Grade 9-12 Elective Credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Per IEP Team
Students in this course learn the basic fundamentals of theater productions and will have opportunities to
participate in theatrical productions, with modifications as appropriate for the student’s needs.

Stagecraft 2
Grades: 10-12 CTE credit
Fee: $15 course material fee/$10 college credit Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Stagecraft 1               YC Credit: 6.0 with grade of C or higher
with a C or higher and an interview with the director.
This is a dual enrollment class with Yavapai College. Students will earn six (6) college credits. Students will
further enhance their skills in  all areas of theatrical production learned in Stagecraft 1. Emphasis will be placed
on set, prop, sound and lighting design for the productions of the BMHS Theatrical Troupe. Involvement in
productions is required which includes night and weekend commitments as per dual enrollment requirements.
Second-year students in the Stagecraft program will compile a professional portfolio and are required to
compete in events at the Arizona Thespian State Conference and the Northern Arizona Festival of Theater.
Additional fees for the competitions may be charged. Special focus in the course is given to college and career
readiness in the field of theatrical production.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 53



Stagecraft 3
Grades: 10-12 CTE credit
Fee: $15 course material fee/$10 college credit Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Successful completion of Stagecraft 1/2           YC Credit: 6.0 with grade of C or higher
with a C  or higher and an interview with the director.
This is a dual enrollment class with Yavapai College. Students will earn six (6) college credits.  Emphasis in this
course is on sound, makeup, hair and costuming for the productions of the BMHS Theatrical Troupe.
Involvement in productions is required which includes night and weekend commitments as per dual
enrollment requirements. Third-year students in the Stagecraft program will continue to compile a professional
portfolio started in Stagecraft 2 and are required to compete in events at the Arizona Thespian State
Conference and the Northern Arizona Festival of Theater. Additional fees for the competitions may be charged.
Special focus in the course is given to college and career readiness in the field of theatrical production.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Diversified Cooperative Education (DCE) Class
Grades: 12 CTE credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Previous CTE courses or currently enrolled in a CTE Program
This course focuses on interpersonal relationships at work, teamwork and leadership skills, technology, and
communication skills needed in the workplace.

DCE Work Experience
Grade: 12 CTE credit
Fee: None Year: Up to 3.0 credits
Prerequisite: Completion of a CTE Program (minimum of 2 CTE Credits)
Diversified Cooperative Education (DCE) permits students to obtain work release if they have completed a
vocational program and have a job related to the program. The student will receive 1 credit for class seat time
and 1 credit per semester for continued work experience. *Instructor approval required.

CTE Internship
Grades: 12 CTE credit
Fee: None Sem: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Completion of Related CTE Program;
Marketing II/Production Studio/CNT (minimum of 2 CTE credits)
Seniors can translate their career and technical skills into professional work experience. Local businesses can
provide program related internships that offer real work experiences, skills and the opportunity to earn credit,
while students build their resume. Students must complete 120 hours to receive credit. There is limited seat
time for this program. *Instructor approval required.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 54



CAREER TECHNICAL EDUCATION DISTRICT

Mountain Institute Career Technical Education District (MICTED) is a cooperative effort among local school
districts. Mountain Institute provides a wide variety of additional Career and Technical Education (CTE)

courses at their central campus while students concurrently attend their high school for graduation.
Several CTED classes earn Yavapai College (YC) credits.

Students who drop MICTED courses after the first scheduled day of classes may be held accountable
for reimbursing MICTED for all tuition/fees paid to Yavapai College for college credit.

Students taking CTED may need to take a zero hour. Some BMHS students participating in CTED may attend a
morning session from 6:45-9:15 am. Some BMHS students participating in CTED attend afternoon sessions

from 1:45-4:15 pm. Students participating in CTED classes may need to take (a)n online course(s).

**Students taking CTED must complete the entire year in order to receive high school credit for CTED.

The district does not provide health insurance for student participation in the CNA program. Students
participate at their own risk. Parents/guardians are encouraged to purchase supplemental insurance

and/or ensure that their private health insurance is adequate.

Aviation Technology I & II
Grade: 11-12 CTE credit
Prerequisites: None Year:  2.5 credits

YC credits: 33 with grade of C or higher
Each class is a year long and will earn a student 2.5 high school credits a year.  Are you fascinated by the world
of flight? Aviation Technology is designed for you. In two years you will receive FAA ground school certifications
in air traffic control, fixed wing flight and helicopters. Instruction includes professional-grade flight simulation,
and in your fourth semester you’ll be offered the option to actually fly a glider simulation, and in your fourth
semester you’ll be offered the option to actually fly a glider.
**Students must travel to be in this program.

Transportation Technologies (Auto Repair) I & II
Grades: 11-12 CTE credit
Prerequisites: None Year:  2.5 credits

YC credits:  28 with grade of C or higher
Each class is a year long and will earn a student 2.5 high school credits a year.  Take a minute and think about
having absolutely no automobiles… yikes – Now wake up from that nightmare. Without trained personnel in
Transportation Technologies/Auto Repair, taking a long time to run an errand is an understatement. This
industry must continually adapt to an ever-changing technology in transportation.
**Students must travel to be in this program.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 55



Welding Technologies I & II
Grades: 11 & 12 CTE credit
Prerequisites: None Year:  2.5 credits

YC credits:  20 with grade of C or higher
Each class is a year long and will earn a student 2.5 high school credits a year.  Do you want a career that is
critical to the nation’s well-being? Do you want to learn one of the few remaining crafts used in manufacturing
and construction today? Pursuing a career in the Welding Profession means that you will become skilled in
high-tech manufacturing applications using the newest developed materials. Skilled welders are needed across
many industries, such as energy production, highway transportation, manufacturing, military applications,
architecture and more.
**Students must travel to be in this program.

Pre-Engineering (Precision Machine/Robotics) I & II
Grades: 11-12 CTE credit
Prerequisites: Algebra II or concurrent enrollment in Year: 3 credits
Algebra II YC credits: 29 with grade of C or higher
Each class is a year long and will earn a student 3 HS credits a year.  Without the Engineering Industry we
would still be taking our horse and buggy to school. This industry has been vital in technically advancing our
world. Are you intrigued by how things work? Do you think about how to make things better? If so, sign up
today for the Pre-Engineering Program of Study! Learn about designing and making parts that are used in
every other industry in the world giving people safer and better lives.
**Students must travel to be in this program.

Medical Assisting I & II
Grades: 11-12 CTE credit
Prerequisite: None Year: 2.5 credits

YC credits:  5 with grade of C or higher
Each class is a year long and will earn a student 2.5 high school credits a year.  The course content includes an
overview of current U.S. healthcare delivery systems and professions including behaviors for success, customer
service, and quality improvement. Its purpose is to prepare the student for all Allied Health programs,
including Medical Professions II, Certified Nursing Assistant and Sports Medicine. Three (3) college credit hours
are possible with a 75% or higher through Dual Enrollment at Yavapai College. Membership in the Career and
Technical Student Organization (HOSA) will be required and its standards will be an integral part of this class.
**Students must travel to be in this program.

Culinary Arts I & II
Grades: 11-12 CTE credit
Prerequisite: None Year: 2.5 credits

YC credits: 16 with grade of C or higher
Each class is a year long and will earn a student 2.5 HS credits a year.  In this program you’ll learn culinary arts
application and hospitality through the focus of American and International cuisine, using professional cooking
and baking methods. Students will become proficient in menu planning, use of equipment and time
management practices for meal service.  In Culinary Arts I students will learn culinary basics and hot foods.  In
Year II, students will learn breakfast and garde manager and baking and pastries.
**Students must travel to be in this program.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 56



Drafting & Design I & II
Grades: 11-12 CTE credit
Prerequisite: None Year: 2.5 credits

Each class is a year long and will earn a student 2.5 HS credits a year. Students learn to use a broad range of
material and are trained to imagine structures that answer the human need for both beauty and practically. If
this sounds like a great way to earn a living, join the Drafting and Design class via distance learning and learn
how to use computer programs (CAD) to design homes and commercial and civic structures.
**Students must travel to be in this program.

Electrical Line Worker I & II
Grades: 11-12 CTE credit
Prerequisite: None Year: 2.5 credits

YC credits:  22 with grade of C or higher
Each class is a year long and will earn a student 2.5 HS credits a year.  A line worker constructs and maintains
electric power transmission and distribution facilities. The term is also used for those who install and maintain
telephone, telegraph, cable TV and more recent fiber optic lines. Power linemen work on electrically energized
(live) and de-energized (dead) power lines.
**Students must travel to be in this program.

CONSTRUCTION TECHNOLOGIES

Basic Carpentry I
Grades: 11-12 CTE credit
Prerequisites: None Year: 2.5 credits
Each class is yearlong and will earn a student 2.5 HS credits a year.  The student will be reinforced with the
skills learned in Basic Carpentry I with hands-on experience in cutting, fastening, footings, framing, assembly,
door/window installation, flooring, and finishing.
**Students must travel to be in this program.

Basic Carpentry II
Grades: 11-12 CTE credit
Prerequisites: Basic Carpentry I Year: 2.5 credits

YC credits:  16 with grade of C or higher
Each class is yearlong and will earn a student 2.5 HS credits a year.  The student will be introduced to carpentry
safety, hand and power tool operation, blueprint reading, materials, and layout. Hands-on experience in
cutting, fastening, footings, framing, assembly, door/window installation, flooring, and finishing.
**Students must travel to be in this program.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 57



FIRE SERVICE

Fire Service I & II
Grades: 11-12 CTE credit
Prerequisites: None Year: 2.5 credits

YC credits: 12 with grade of C or higher
Our Fire Service Program provides students with hands-on training in fire prevention and fire protection
systems. The program will introduce wildland fire prevention which includes fire behavior, fire suppression
methods and equipment, and safety and incident command. Students will be trained in the major categories of
hazardous materials, including detection and identification of hazardous materials as well as strategy and
tactics in the management of these materials. This program provides preparation for Arizona Center of Fire
Service Excellence certification. The final year of the program involves preparation for State Fire Marshal
Firefighter I and II certification. The preparation trains students in the essentials of firefighting, including fire
department operations, firefighting equipment, and safety. Upon the completion of the program, students will
have the opportunity to apply to the Fire Academy or continue on at Yavapai College to complete the Fire
Science - AAS program.

EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION

Early Childhood Education
Grades: 11-12 CTE credit
Prerequisites: 1st year completion to continue Year: 1.25 credits

YC credits: 24 with grade of C or higher
The Early Childhood Education program is designed to prepare students for employment in early childhood
settings. The Early Childhood Education program includes instruction in child growth and development, child
health, nutrition, safety, planning, and supervision of developmentally-appropriate practices and learning
activities. Child guidance, family relationships, parenting, and applicable legal and administrative requirements
are also addressed. Preparation for the development and management of effective early childhood programs
and facilities is included.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 58



NON-DEPARTMENTAL

Peer Tutor
Grade: 11-12 Elective credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Teacher Recommendation; 2.5 GPA; Administrative Approval
This class is open to students who have demonstrated the capability to help teachers and their students within
the class setting. The student will be available to assist the teacher in daily organizational tasks, as well as
assisting students within the class with their peer tutor. The student will gain experience in the daily teaching
routine, as well as the interaction with students.

Teacher Aide
Grades: 11-12 Elective credit
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit
Prerequisite: 2.5 GPA; Teacher approval
Acceptance is by mutual agreement and for the benefit of both the student and teacher. A student’s workload
may be rather light and at that time they are expected to do homework or study. The appropriate forms must
be filled out in the counseling office. Clerical skills are desired. This position is graded as pass/fail.

Office/Counselor Aide
Grades: 11-12 Elective credit
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit
Prerequisite: 2.5 GPA; Administrative approval
Acceptance is by mutual agreement and for the benefit of both the student and staff member. This position
requires contact with the public. The student’s behavior and grooming must be appropriate for representing
the school. Clerical skills are desired. This position is graded as pass/fail.

Library Aide
Grades: 11-12 Elective credit
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit
Prerequisite: 2.5 GPA; Administrative approval
This position needs to be mutually agreed upon by the student and librarian. As a library aide, one will learn
how a library operates and the various services offered. This position is graded as pass/fail.

Nurse Aide
Grades: 11-12 Elective credit
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit
Prerequisite: 2.5 GPA; Administrative approval
Acceptance is by mutual agreement and for the benefit of student and nurse. Students require both clerical
and minor first aide skills. This position is graded as pass/fail.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 59



Student Leadership
Grades: 9-12 Elective credit OR Extracurricular activity
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit OR no credit
Prerequisite: Be an elected member of student council and a 2.5 GPA
The students and staff of Bradshaw Mountain High School are committed to the principle of student
government and acknowledge the value of granting students considerable autonomy in the governance of
their affairs as means by which strong character is developed and nurtured. Student government promotes
leadership, self-confidence, and self-reliance. It is a privilege, not a right, and teaches students important
lessons regarding the proper balance of freedom, privilege, and responsibility.

AVID
Grades: 9-12 Elective credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Application acceptance into the AVID program
AVID is an elective course that prepares students in the “academic middle” and first-generation college
students for acceptance into a four-year university. Instruction is based on the WICOR (Writing, Inquiry,
Collaboration, Organization, and Reading) strategies. Cornell note-taking, tutorials, preparation for college
entrance exams, and college field trips are also included. This is a four-year program; four years of AVID adjusts
the criteria for the silver/gold diploma.

AVID Tutor
Grade: 12 Elective credit
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit
Prerequisite: 3.0 GPA; AVID Teacher and Coordinator approval
Acceptance by mutual agreement only after completion of application by students wishing to be tutors for the
AVID program. Under the direct supervision of the AVID teacher, tutors work with 5-7 AVID students twice a
week during tutorials and assist the teacher in providing academic and organizational skills to students. Tutors
are trained in the use of WICOR (writing, including Cornell Note-taking, inquiry, collaboration and reading)
strategies and methodologies. Students’ workload may fluctuate and are expected to bring homework or
study. This class is Pass/Fail.

Mentor Academy Period (MAP)
Grades: 9-12 Elective credit
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit
Prerequisite: Application and acceptance into the AP Academy
MAP is an elective designed specifically for the students that are in the AP Academy.

English Language Arts Lab
Grade: 9-12 Elective credit
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit
Prerequisite: Per IEP team
This is a course that aims to strengthen reading decoding and comprehension skills through a research-based
intervention program.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 60



Essential Skills Lab
Grade: 9-12 Elective credit
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit
Prerequisite: Per IEP Team
The essential skills lab offers pre-teaching and re-teaching of key concepts from the general education
curriculum as well as support for completion of assignments.

Interpersonal Skills
Grade: 9-12 Elective credit
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit
Prerequisite: Per IEP Team
Students will be given the opportunity to interact with peers and staff in order to increase their
interpersonal skills.

Social Skills
Grade: 9-12 Elective credit
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit
Prerequisite: Per IEP Team
Students will be given the opportunity to interact with peers and staff in order to increase their social skills.

Organizational and Study Skills
Grade: 9-12 Elective credit
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit
Prerequisite: Per IEP Team
Students will be given the opportunity to increase their ability to organize their school day, assignments
and responsibilities in order to increase their academic success.

TSW/ Career Development
Grade: 11 Elective credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Per IEP team
The Transition from School to Work Program (TSW) is a two-year program that assists students’ transition from
school to paid, competitive employment, or post-secondary education or training. The student, their family
and the TSW staff work together to develop a career plan that is driven by the student’s interests, skills and
preferences. Classes focus on post-secondary goals, career choices, finding and keeping a job, and adult living
skills.

TSW/Employment Skills
Grade: 12 Elective credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Per IEP team
The Transition from School to Work Program (TSW) is a two-year program that assists students’ transition from
school to paid, competitive employment, or post-secondary education or training. The student, their family
and the TSW staff work together to develop a career plan that is driven by the student’s interests, skills and
preferences. Classes focus on post-secondary goals, career choices, finding and keeping a job, and adult living
skills.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 61



TSW-M Independent Living Skills
Grade: 9-12 Elective credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Individual Transition Plan
Students will be given the opportunity to work on transition goals and objectives that have been identified
by the student and the IEP team in community and classroom settings. Independent living focuses on
money management, community resources, and housing options.

TSW-M Career Development
Grade: 9-12 Elective credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Individual Transition Plan
Students will be given the opportunity to work on transition goals and objectives that have been identified by
the student and the IEP team in community and classroom settings. This course explores possible career,
vocational, and workplace options through interest inventories and a variety of hands-on work related
experiences to assist students in determining their strengths, preferences and interests as it relates to
potential work opportunities and careers.

TSW-M Employment Skills
Grade: 9-12 Elective credit
Fee: None Year: 1.0 credit
Prerequisite: Individual Transition Plan
Students will be given the opportunity to work on transition goals and objectives that have been identified
by the student and the IEP team in community and classroom settings. A course that provides job readiness
experience while training in a job site generally within the school through on campus or in-district work
experience.

Student Support Center
Grade: 9-12 Not For Credit
Fee: none
Prerequisite: Per IEP Team
Students will be given the opportunity to meet unique needs that cannot be met during academic courses.
Examples  of unique needs may be physical therapy or occupational therapy, adapted eating/feeding, etc.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 62



ONLINE LEARNING

The Learning Center (TLC)
Grade: 10-12 Credits assigned to a variety of courses
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit/course successfully
Admittance: Scheduled through completed
counseling office
Unique in the region, BMHS offers students an alternative to a traditional classroom setting. Students wishing
to pursue a high school diploma but, for a variety of reasons, are unable to attend classes in a general
classroom setting, may attend our computer lab located in the TLC room. There is no fee charged for
participation.

School counselors direct courses of study allowing students to earn needed credits, either in preparation to
return to classes outside the TLC lab or to complete requirements for graduation. To be considered full-time,
students attend four-hour sessions and must attempt and/or pass a minimum of passing one class every three
weeks.

The lab is staffed by highly qualified instructors and online teachers are assigned for each class. Students are
welcomed to a structured learning environment and encouraged to be successful in their academic purpose.
Many students benefit from the small class size and individual attention provided.

Students are able to accelerate their studies by submitting additional assignments from home. Courses are
open entry—open exit, meaning a student may begin at any time in the school year and complete a course
once all assignments have been submitted. Credits are transcribed by the registrar and become part of
students’ permanent records.

Bears’ Den
Grade: 9-12 Credits assigned to a variety of courses
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit/course successfully
Admittance: Scheduled through counseling office completed
The Bear Den is a blended learning environment for students who are behind in credits. This class period
allows for students to make up credits during the day in an online learning system with a teacher available to
help, assist, and monitor their progress. The goal of this class is for students to complete one course per
quarter.

Bradshaw Mountain Online Academy (BMOA)
Grade: 9-12 Credits assigned to a variety of courses
Fee: None Semester: 0.5 credit/course successfully
Admittance: Scheduled through counseling office
The Bradshaw Mountain Online Academy (BMOA) is an online learning system designed for students who are
either unable or choose not  to attend traditional classes on the Bradshaw Mountain High School campus.
Students enrolled full-time in the BMOA will receive a Bradshaw Mountain Online Academy diploma upon
successful completion of graduation requirements. Please consult the counseling office or BMOA literature for
more information.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 63



BMHS COURSE FEES / SCHOOL FEES 2022-2023

CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION PERFORMING ARTS (CONTINUED)

DIGITAL MEDIA COMMUNICATIONS  1 $10.00 INTERMEDIATE DRAMA $15.00

DIGITAL MEDIA COMMUNICATIONS 2 $10.00 INTRO TO THEATER AND FILM $15.00

BUSINESS I $10/YC CREDIT STAGECRAFT 1 $15.00

BUSINESS II $10/YC CREDIT STAGECRAFT 2 $15.00/$10/YC CREDIT

COMPUTERS AND NETWORKING 1 $10/YC CREDIT STAGECRAFT 3 $15.00/$10/YC CREDIT

COMPUTERS AND NETWORKING 2 $10/YC CREDIT INSTRUMENTAL MUSIC

CNA FUNDAMENTALS $30.00 COLOR GUARD PARTICIPATION FEE $50.00

CNA STATE BOARD EXAM (OPTIONAL) $108.00 GUITAR $25.00

CYBERSECURITY $10/YC CREDIT GUITAR 2 $25.00

DIGITAL PHOTOGRAPHY $10.00 INSTRUMENT USAGE (IF APPLICABLE) $50.00

PRODUCTION STUDIO 2A / YEARBOOK 2B $10.00 JAZZ ENSEMBLE $50.00

LET (JROTC) $25.00 MARCHING BAND $100.00

MULTIMEDIA INDEPENDENT STUDY $10.00 MARCHING SHOES (IF APPLICABLE) $27.00

STRING ORCHESTRA $50.00

FINE ARTS WINTER GUARD PARTICIPATION FEE $50.00

ADVANCED CERAMICS AND 3D SCULPTURE $50.00 VOCAL MUSIC

ADVANCED DRAWING AND PAINTING $50.00 CHAMBER SINGERS $40.00

AP STUDIO ART: 2-D DRAWING, 2-D
DESIGN AND 3-D DESIGN

$50.00 CONCERT CHOIR $30.00

AP STUDIO ART: EXAM FEE TBD WOMEN’S CHORUS $30.00

CERAMICS AND 3D SCULPTURE $40.00 WOMEN’S ENSEMBLE $40.00

DRAWING AND PAINTING $40.00 SOCIAL STUDIES

INTRO TO ART $30.00 AP PSYCHOLOGY LAB FEE $10.00

PERFORMING ARTS

DRAMA PHYSICAL EDUCATION

ADVANCED DRAMA $15.00 PE LOCK REPLACEMENT $ 5.50

BEGINNING DRAMA $15.00 UNIFORM (REQUIRED) $25.00

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 64



SCIENCE OPTIONAL PURCHASES

ANATOMY & PHYSIOLOGY $20.00 ACT TEST PREP FEES $45.00

AP BIOLOGY $20.00 ADULT ATHLETIC PASS (6 & UNDER FREE) $40.00

AP CHEMISTRY $20.00 SENIOR ATHLETIC PASS (62+) $30.00

AP PHYSICS 1 $20.00 STUDENT ATHLETIC PASS $30.00

AP PHYSICS 2 $20.00 AP EXAM TBD

PRE-AP BIOLOGY $10.00 AP EXAM - FREE/REDUCED TBD

PRE-AP CHEMISTRY $10.00 AVID SUMMER SCHOOL $25.00

PRE-AP GEOSCIENCE $5.00 DUAL ENROLLMENT $10.00/YC CREDIT

PRE-AP PHYSICS $10.00 EXTRA GRADUATION TICKETS $5.00/TICKET

EXTRA PHOTO ID $5.00

FOREIGN LANGUAGE LIBRARY COPIES $0.10/COPY

SPANISH 102 $10/YC CREDIT LOST TEXTBOOK/BOOK REPLACEMENT TBD

OVERDUE LIBRARY BOOK $0.10/DAY; MAX $3.00

MATHEMATICS PARCHMENT TRANSCRIPT $5.00/TRANSACTION

COLLEGE ALGEBRA $10/YC CREDIT PAY TO PARTICIPATE $110.00

PRE-CALC $10/YC CREDIT PAY TO PARTICIPATE - FREE/REDUCED $55.00

STUDENT PARKING $70.00

ENGLISH STUDENT PARKING AFTER SPRING BREAK $45.00

COLLEGE ENGLISH 101 $10/YC CREDIT SUMMER SCHOOL CREDIT RECOVERY $50.00/CLASS

COLLEGE ENGLISH 102 $10/YC CREDIT TO REOPEN A CREDIT RECOVERY CLASS $20.00

YEARBOOK (PRE-REGISTRATION-SEM 1) $75.00

ONLINE LEARNING YEARBOOK (SEM 2 BEFORE DELIVERY) $80.00

BMOA $10/YEAR YEARBOOK (AFTER DISTRIBUTION)

YAVAPAI COLLEGE CONCURRENT TUITION

$85.00

$95/$110/$122/
YC CREDIT
DEPENDING ON
COURSE

PLEASE NOTE: ALL UNPAID FEES WILL BECOME FINES IF NOT PAID BY SEPTEMBER 6, 2022

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 65



HUMBOLDT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT DEFINITIONS AND PROCEDURE FOR REPORTING
STUDENT VIOLENCE / HARASSMENT/ INTIMIDATION / BULLYING

The Governing Board of the Humboldt Unified School District believes it is the right of every student to be
educated in a positive, safe, caring, and respectful learning environment. The Governing Board further believes
a school environment that is inclusive of these traits maximizes student achievement, fosters student personal
growth, and helps a student build a sense of community that promotes positive participation as citizens in
society.

To assist in achieving a school environment based on the beliefs of the Governing Board, bullying in any
form will not be tolerated.

Bullying: Bullying may occur when a student or group of students engages in any form of behavior that
includes such acts as intimidation and/or harassment that:
● has the effect of physically harming a student, damaging a student’s property, or placing a student in

reasonable fear of harm or damage to property;
● is sufficiently severe, persistent or pervasive that the action, behavior, or threat creates an intimidating,

threatening, or abusive environment in the form of physical or emotional harm;
● occurs when there is a real or perceived imbalance of power or strength;
● may constitute a violation of the law.

Bullying of a student or group of students can be manifested through written, verbal, physical, or emotional
means and may occur in a variety of forms including, but not limited to:
● verbal, written/printed or graphic exposure to derogatory comments, extortion, exploitation, name calling,

or rumor spreading either directly through another person or group or through cyberbullying;
● exposure to social exclusion or ostracism;
● physical contact including but not limited to pushing, hitting, kicking, shoving, or spitting;
● and damage to or theft of personal property.

Cyberbullying: Cyberbullying is, but not limited to, any act of bullying committed by use of electronic
technology or electronic communication devices, including telephonic devices, social networking and other
internet communications, on school computers, networks, forums and mailing list, or other District-owned
property, and by means of an individual’s personal electronic media and equipment.

Harassment: Harassment is intentional behavior by a student or group of students that is disturbing or
threatening to another student or group of students.  Intentional behaviors that characterize harassment
include, but are not limited to, stalking, hazing, social exclusion, name calling, unwanted physical contact and
unwelcome verbal or written comments, photographs and graphics. Harassment may be related, but not
limited to, race, religious orientation, sexual preference, cultural background, economic status, size or personal
appearance. Harassing behaviors can be direct or indirect and by use of social media.

Intimidation: Intimidation is intentional behavior by a student or group of students that places another
student or group of students in fear of harm of person or property. Intimidation can be manifested emotionally
or physically, either directly or indirectly, and by use of social media.

Students are prohibited from bullying on school grounds, school property, school buses, at school bus stops, at
school sponsored events and activities, and through the use of electronic technology or electronic
communication equipment on school computers, networks, forums, or mailing lists.

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 66



Disciplinary action may result for bullying which occurs outside of the school and the school day when such
acts result in a substantial physical, mental, or emotional negative effect on the victim, while on school
grounds, school property, school buses, at school bus stops, or at school sponsored events and activities, or
when such act(s) interfere with the authority of the school system to maintain order. All suspected violations of
law will be reported to local law enforcement.

Students who believe they are experiencing being bullied or expect another student is bullied should
report their concern to any staff member of the School District. School personnel are to maintain appropriate
confidentiality of the reported information.

Reprisal by any student directed toward a student or employee related to the reporting of a case or a
suspected case of bullying shall not be tolerated, and the individual(s) will be subject to the disciplines set out
in applicable District policies and administrative regulations.

Students found to be bullying others will be disciplined up to and including suspension or expulsion from
school.

Knowingly submitting a false report under this policy shall subject the student to discipline up to and including
suspension or expulsion. Where disciplinary action is necessary pursuant to any part of this policy, relevant
District policies shall be followed.

Law enforcement authorities shall be notified any time District officials have a reasonable belief that an
incidence of bullying is a violation of the law.

Each Humboldt Unified School District campus has a positive behavioral program. Please contact the
principal regarding the campus program and support services available.

Reference: (the documents listed below are available on the district website at www.humboldtunified.com)

HUSD Policy JICK – Student Violence/Harassment/Intimidation/Bullying
Regulation JICK-R – Student Violence/Harassment/Intimidation/Bullying Exhibit JICK-EA – Student
Violence/Harassment/Intimidation/Bullying

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 67

http://www.humboldtunified.com


Humboldt Unified School District
Governing Board Members

Mr. Richard Adler, President
Mr. Paul Ruwald, Vice President
Mr. Corey Christians, Member

Mr. Ryan Gray, Member
Ms. Suzie Roth, Member

Mr. John Pothast, Superintendent
Dr. Christine Griffin, Executive Director of Educational Services/Federal Programs

Mr. Kort Miner, Executive Director of Operations

Ms. Patty Bitsilly, Director of Special Services
Mr. Roger Studley, Director of Finance

BRADSHAW MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOOL 68









Summary Report   

Annual Evaluation of Superintendent Mr. John Pothast 

January 11, 2022   

District Policy CBI outlines the process for the annual performance evaluation of the 

Superintendent by the Governing Board. This evaluation is designed to provide 

feedback to the Superintendent in relation to the duties and responsibilities of his 

position. The Superintendent Evaluation Tool, which appears in District policy as well, 

was utilized for the purposes of the evaluation. This comprehensive document includes  

57 separate evaluation criteria to rate in the areas of Annual Board Goals, Leadership 

Proficiencies, Supervisory Proficiencies, and Administrative Management Proficiencies.  

Board members were asked to complete the ratings for each item using a rating scale 

of Outstanding, Satisfactory, Needs Improvement, Unsatisfactory, or Not Observed.  

Written comments are also invited for each item as well as summary comments at the 

end. To assist in this process, the board received Superintendent Pothast’s comments 

on each item, as well as a binder of documentation w/supporting artifacts of his work 

during this past year. Each board member then independently completed the 

evaluation instrument and submitted it to the board secretary for compilation. The 

resulting document was reviewed and discussed with Mr. Pothast in Executive Session 

during the December 7, 2021 regular meeting of the Governing Board.    

The compiled results of board member ratings and comments, along with  

Superintendent Pothast’s supporting materials provided the framework for a robust 

and open discussion of the Superintendent's strengths, successes and areas for 

continued growth.    

The general consensus of the Governing Board is that Mr. Pothast is doing an excellent 

job as the educational leader of the district. There emerged a strong pattern of 

Outstanding and Satisfactory ratings throughout the instrument. The Board considered 

the ongoing effect of the pandemic throughout John's tenure, therefore there are 

many exciting initiatives that are currently underway that promise to move our District 

in a very positive direction.    

A few of the board member's words and phrases are highlighted and paraphrased 

below to describe Superintendent Pothast’s performance:    

-a year of growth and balance; you have done both very well   

-very impressed with how you have integrated yourself into the community 

leading the district through trying times while keeping a focus on the future your 

wisdom and temperament are a gift to the community   



-outstanding job in a difficult time   

-provides a clear vision of innovative teaching and learning   

-truly listens, considers other points of view, self-reflective  

Superintendent Pothast demonstrates strong leadership through true collaboration. He 

has shown himself to be an effective and highly ethical educational leader with a clear 

vision, and a real desire to empower others. These are great qualities for a leader of 

an organization to possess and the board is grateful for Superintendent Pothast’s 

forward thinking, courageous leadership benefiting both the students and staff of 

HUSD. The Governing Board looks forward to continuing to work with Superintendent 

Pothast as we move forward into what promises to be an exciting future!   

On behalf of the Governing Board of the Humboldt Unified School District,  

Respectfully submitted   

Richard Adler, President  






	Cover Sheet
	Agenda 01-11-2022 Regular Meeting
	Board Packet 01-11-2022 Part 1



